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MAZARS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF ELAVON FINANCIAL SERVICES DAC

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion .
We have audited the financial statements of Elavon Financial Services DAC (*the Company and Group') for the
year ended 31 December 2018, which comprise the Group and Company Statement of Income, the Group and
Company Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Group and Company Statement of Financial Position,
the Group and Company Statement of Changes in Equity, the Group and Company Statement of Cash flows and
the related notes 1 to 36 to the Group financial statements and notes A to I to the Company financial statements
including the summary of significant accounting policies set out in note 2, The financial reporting framework
that has been applied in their preparation is Irish Law and Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as
adopted by the European Union and Article 4 of the IAS regulation with respect to the Group financial statements.

In our opinion the financial statements:
o give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities and financial position of the Group and Company ss at 31
December 2018 and of its profit for the year then ended;
e have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs ss adopted by the European Union; and
s have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2014 and, as regards the
Group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS regulation.

Qur opinion is consistent with the additional report to the Audit Committee we are required to provide in
accordance with ISA (Ireland) 260,

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (Ireland) (ISAs (Ireland)) and
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the
audit of the financial statements section of our report,

We arc independent of the Group and Company in accordance with ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of financial statements in Ireland, including the Bthical Standard issued by the Irish Auditing and Accounting
Supervisory Authority (JAASA), and we have fulfilled our other cthical responsibilities in accordance with these

requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which 1SAs (Irefand) require us to
report to you where;
s the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is
not appropriate: or
»  the Directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may cast
significant doubt about the Group and Company’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised
for issue.

‘Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters ere those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in- our audit of
the financial statements of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of material
misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) we identified, including those which had the greatest effect on: the
overall audit strategry, the allocation of resources in the audit; and directing the efforis of the engagement team.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming
ouy opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters,
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7Kcy audit matter —

services reventte and related settlement
balatices

There is a presumption under International
Standards on Auditing that there is a significant
risk of fraud in the fiming of revenue
recognition leading to material misstatements
of revenue overall. This is because revenue is
typically an area of particular focus by readers
of the financial statements and cen be subject
to judgement as to when the income can be
appropriately recognised.

The most significant revenue stream of the
Company end Group is income earned from
merchant processing services which is
determined based on the value and nature of
transactions processed and the rates agreed
with merchants in the underlying merchant
contracts.

Settiement risk in the ordinary course of
business is the risk that the Group will not
reccive payment at the time transactions are
settled with the scheme associations.

The processing and recognition of these
transactions with merchants is highly
dependent on opetational IT systems through
which the payments are processed and
controlled and the operating effectiveness of
key manual and IT application controls
underpinning each stage in the transaction
cycle. Accordingly, our audit approach was
predominately controls based including 1T
control reliance.

Timely and accurate data feeds fiom these
operational IT systems into the General Ledger
is required to calculate and record revenue and
determine settlement balances. The design and
implementation of the key general IT controls
of each of these systems is key to ensuring that
all transactions including those that are in
progress at year end are processed and recorded
in accordance with contractual terms and
ensuring the comrect classification of scttlement
balances.

Refer to page 30 (sccounting policy) and page
39 (financial disclosures).

| How the matfer was addressed in our audit
i

Tested the design, implementation and operating effectiveness
of key manual and IT application controls underpinning
merchant processing  services revenue recognition and
settlement processes, including controls around the on-boarding
and credit underwriting of merchants, merchant payments and
exceptions, master file maintenance and settlement
reconciliations,

Tested the relevant 1T application conirol supporting the upload
of revenue and settlement transactions from the merchant
processing system to the primary general ledger and tested the
subsequent reconciliation of this merchant processing data to the
general ledger to assess the completeness and accuracy of
revenue and settlement data feeds into the general ledger.

Reviewed and assessed the results of control testing performed
as part of Elavon Inc's Service Organisation Control Repont for
2018. Elavon Financial Services DAC is a user of key systems
and processes operated by Elavon Inc. The controls tested
included IT General controls and IT Application controls on key
operational IT systems which underpin revenue and settlement
as weli as key manual controls underpinning the processing of
merchant revenue, Certain relevant controls included in the
scope of the Service Organisation Contro] Report formed part of
our controls reliance sirategy.

Performed substantive testing on a sample basis agreeing
revenue from customers to source documentation.

Assessed the cut off of revenue and seftlement balances to
ensure the recognition of revenue and classification of
settlement balances were reflected in the correct period through
both controls and substantive audit testing.

Performed substantive testing on post year end clearance of
settlement balances on a sample basis.

We assessed the appropriateness of the related disclosures in the
financial statements.

Based on the procedures performed we consider the basis for the
recognition of merchant processing services revenue and the
related settlement balances to be reasonable.
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Key andit matter — Uneertain tax provision | How the matter was addressed in our audit

The recording of & provision for uncertain tax
positions require the Directors to make | uncertain tax provision including any correspondence during the
judgements and estimates in relation to tax | year from the Revenue Commissioners.

issues and exposures. Specifically, the Group
have booked a tax provision in respect to its | We met with senior management and challenged the judgements
treatment of gains realised on sale of VISA | applied, which underpin the continued recognition of the

shares in 2016 end 2017, provision,

Refer to page 33 (accounting policy) and page | We reviewed against accounting recognition rules and assessed

42 (financial disclosures), the adequacy of the related disclosure within the financial
statements.

This is one of the key judgemental areas that
our audit is focused on due to the significance | Based on the evidence obtained we consider the basis for the

of the transactions upon which the provision | recognition of the uncertain tax provision to be reasonable.
has been accrued and the time it will take for
these tax matters to be considered by the
relevant tax authorities.

Obtained from management, its assessment with regard to the

Our application of materiality

Based on our professional judgement, we determined cestain quantitative thresholds for materiality, including the
overall materiality for the financial statements of the Group as & whole as set out in the table below. These,
together with qualitative considerations, helped us to determine the scope of our audit and the nature, timing and
extent of our sudit procedures and to evaluate the effect of misstatements, both individually and in aggregate on
the financial statements as a whole.

Overall materiality Overall materiality: €2,186,000 Overall materiality: €2,172,000

How we determined it 5% of profit before tax.

We applied this benchmark because in our view this is a metric against which
?atit;::lel-lior the materiality the recurring performance of the Group (and the Company) is commonly
en measured by its stakeholders.

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to them misstatements identified during our audit
above €66,000 (Group audit) and €66,000 (Company audit) as well as misstatements below that amount that, in
our view, warranted reporting for qualitative reasons.

An overview of the scope of our audit

The Group financial statements are a consolidation of eleven reporting units, including 6 branches, five separate
legal entities, three of which are dormant. We tailored the scope of our audit to ensure that sufficient testing was
performed to be able to give an opinion on the financial statements as a whole, taking into account, amongst
others, the structure of the Group, the assessed risks of material misstatement and the control environment,
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All audit work on reporting units undertaken for the purposes of our Group audit opinion was performed by the
Group audit team at the Group's finance centre in Dublin,

We identified and tested certain controls over key financial systems identifted as part of our risk assessment,
including a review of general IT controls, the accounts production process, and controls addressing critical
accounting matters. From this work, we sought to place reliance on the Group’s internal controls wherever

possible.

We undertook substantive testing on significant transactions, balances, and disclosures, the extent of which was
based on various factors such as our overall essessment of the control environment, the effectiveness of controls
over individval systems, and the management of specific risks.

Other information

The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included
in the annual report other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the
financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in
our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obfained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material
misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required

to report that fact,

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2014

Based solely on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, we report that:
¢ in our opinion, the information given in the Directors’ report is consistent with the financial statements; and
s in our opinion, the Directors’ report has been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2014.

We have obtained all the information and explanations which we consider necessary for the purposes of our audit,
In our opinion the accounting records of the Group and Company were sufficient to permit the financial statements
to be readily and properly audited and the financial statements are in agreement with the accounting records,

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Based on the knowledge and understanding of the Group and Company and its environment obtained in the course of
the audit, we have not identified any material misstatements in the Directors’ report,

The Companies Act 2014 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion, the disclosures of Directors’ remuneration and
transactions required by Sections 305 to 312 of the Act are not made.

The Companies Act 2014 also requires us to report to you if, in our opinion, the Group and Company has not provided
the information required by section 5(2) to (7) of the European Union (Discloswre of non-financial and diversity
Information by certain large undertakings and groups) Regulations 2017 for the year ended 31 December 2018 as
required by the Buropean Union (Disclosure of non-financial and diversity Information by certain large institutions
and groups) {amendment) Regulations 2018,

We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Respective responsibilities

Responsibilities of Directors for the financial statements

As explained mors fully in the Directors’ responsibilities statement set on page 9, the Directors are responsible
for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for
sich internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group and Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibiiities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs (Ireland) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can

arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected fo influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statéments is located on the JAASA's

webs:te at hﬂp,//www iaasa.ie/getmedia/b2389013-1cf6-458b-9b8a98202dc9¢c3a/Description of auditors

25p0 for audit.pdf,

This description forms part of our auditor's report.

Other matters which we gre required to address

Following the recommendation of the Audit Committee, we were appointed by the Company and its
subsidiaries on 6 September 2018 to audit the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018, The
period of total uninterrupted engagement is two years covering the years ended 31 December 2017 to 2018,

The non-audit services prohibited by IAASA’s Ethical Standard were not provided to the Group or the
Company and we remain independent of the Group and the Company in conducting cur audit.

Our audit opinion is consisient with the additional report to the Audit Committee we are required to provide in
accordance with ISA (Treland) 260.

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

Our report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Section 391 of the Companies
Act 2014, Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s members those matters
we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by
law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s members,
as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

P T,

Michael Tuohy

for and on behalf of Mazars

Chartered Accountants & Statutory Audit Firm
Harcourt Centre, Block 3

Harcourt Road

Dublin 2

= e 3]g




Directors and Other information

Board of Directors

Name Country of Residence Other
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Jamie Walker USA

Shailesh Kotwal USA Chalrman

Troy Remington USA

Declan Lynch Ireland
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Andrew Hastings UK Independent Non-Executive
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Abigail 5t. John Kennedy - Appointed 20t September 2018

Registered Office
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D18 W315

Sollcitors
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North Wall Quay
Dublin 1

Auditors
Mazars

Chartered Accountants & Statutory Audit Firm

Harcourt Centre
Block 3
Harcourt Road
Dublin 2

Registered Number: 418442




Directors’ Report
The Birectars present herewith their report tagether with the audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31

December 2018.

Principal activities and business abjectlves

Elavon Financial Services DAC (‘the Bank’) is licensed by the Central Bank of Ireland. The Bank's ultimate parent
undertaking is U.S. Bancorp, a company incorparated in Delaware, U.5.A. which Is also the parent of U.S. Bank
National Assaciation {‘U.S. Bank'}, and the fifth largest U.S. commercial bank. As at 31 December 2018, U.S. Bancorp
has assets of $467 billion, depasits of $345 billion and loans of $287 billion. Further details of the Bank’s parent
undertakings are disclosed in Note 30 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. The Bank, its branches and Its

subsidiaries are hereinafter referred to as ‘the Group'.

The Group’s primary business objective is to support the growth of U.S. Bancorp’s Payments and Investment Services
businesses in Europe, Over the last number of years, this has been achieved through the development of relevant
product sets and through Investment In both technology and people to dellver growth, improve customer
experience, drive efficlencies, maintain appropriate controls and maintain a highly engaged employee base.

The Group's activities in Europe during 2018 were principally focused on the provision of:
¢ Elavon Merchant Services in respect of card and ecommerce transactions to merchants;
s Global Corporate Trust Services for structured and securitised transactions; and
+  Corporate Payment Systems to merchants, multinational corporations and governments with sophisticated
payment processing needs.

Elavon Merchant Services {'EMS’) is one of Europe’s largest merchant acquirers and is well positioned In all of the
key European acquiring markets. Merchant customers are from most areas of economic activity, including retail,
hotel, restaurant, entertainment, fuel, travel and government.

Globa! Corporate Trust Services ("GCTS’) Is one of the premier providers of corporate trust services in the United
States and Europe, serving private and public companies, government and tax-exempt entities, and financial services
companles. It has been a provider of comprehensive corporate trust services for nearly 100 years and our European
team has been active in the European corporate trust market for more than a decade. GCTS provides a wide range
of trust and agency services such as corporate bond trustee, calculation/paying agent, and collateral administration.

Corporate Payment Systems ('CPS’) is focused on meeting the needs of our U.S. based multinational customers with
subsidiaries located In Europe. To this end, during 2018 the business made the strategic decision that from 2019
onwards, the group’s primary focus will be in respect of providing best-in-class travel products and services. This
decision has the effect that the business will cease operating in the freight payment market in Europe.

Review of business performance during the financial year

The underlying perfermance of the bank remains strong. The Merchant Services business delivered very positive
volume growth of approximately 8%, with overall fee revenues up on the prior year. The Corporate Trust business
achleved an increase in total fee revenue, positively impacted by an increase in recurring fees. Increased expense in
2018 is primarily refated to additions to staffing levels both within the business lines and in the corporate support

functions.

Strategic direction and busfness model
The Group's operation in Europe represents a significant investment on the part of the Group’s ultimate parent, U.5.

Bancorp, and is a key enabler of U.S. Bancorp’s International growth strategy.

The Bank's strategic direction will continue to focus on payments and investments services markets and is well
positioned for future challenges and epportunities with strong established franchises in both markets in Europe.

Strategic goals are focused on customer experience and operational efficiencies through streamlined global offerings
with Investment in technology and talent to deliver a bank with campelling, sustainable capital returns and
considered, transparent and cantrolled risk profile.
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Key performance indicators

The Directors are satisfied with the Group’s performance and financlal position for the year which are set out in the
Consalidated Statement of Income and the Consolldated Statement of Financial Position on pages 12 & 14
respectively, The Group maintained strong capital and liquidity during 2018 and continued to focus an its financial
strength, efficiency, business modael, prudent risk management and strong culture.

On a monthly basis, multiple key performance indlcators (‘KPI’) are calculated based on internal measures and are
provided to the Group's Risk Management Committee (see Nate 27). The accounting basis for the internal measures
may differ from International Financial Reporting Standards {‘IFRS’}.

The Internal KPis reviewed (together with their 2018 full year measures) are as follows:
s  Net income for 2018 of EUR 35.8 miltion {2017: EUR 30.6 million)

Total revenue for 2018 of EUR 327.4 million (2017: EUR 300.6 million)

Credit and debit volume for 2018 of EUR 84.7 billion {2017: EUR 87.4 billion}

Number of emplayees as at 31 December 2018 of 2,129 {2017: 2,005 )

Total assets as at 31 December 2018 of EUR 7.5 billion {2017: EUR 10.3 billion)

Capital ratio as at 31 December 2018 of 48% (2017: 22%}

* & ¥ & @

In respect of the above KPIs:

¢ Netincome has increased by EUR 5.2 million from 2017 levels. There was a one-time loss in 2017 in respect
of the sale of the Bank’s interest in the Spanish joint venture. The year-on-year effect of this is offset by
Increased personnel expense in 2018 due primarly to increased headcount;

»  Revenue has increased by EUR 26.8 million from 2017 levels, primarlly due to the one-off loss on the sale
of the Bank’s interest in the Spanish Joint venture in 2017;

& The Bank’s capital ratio has increased by 26% from 2017, primarily due to a decrease in the fevel of the
Bank's risk weighted assets. This decrease arises from the Bank’s amended capital treatment of chargeback
risk, as authorised by the Central Bank of Ireland.

Group outlook
It is considered that the Group’s business mix, sound strategies and prudent business madel puts the Group in a

strong position for the years ahead. In particular, this should allow the Group to respond appropriately and
effectively to the anticipated impacts of increased banking regulation, European legislation changes, political or
economic uncertainty and technological advances.

The Group, as part of its strategic planning processes, has develaped strategic business objectives to be delivered
over the planning horizon which are focused on new products, enhanced customer service and organic growth while
operating in growing economies with strong fundamentals.

Golng concern
The Directors have a reasonable expectation that, having made appropriate enquiries, the Group has adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, the Financial Statements

are prepared on a going concern basis.

Financial risk management
Detalls of the Group's financlal risk management objectives and policies are set out in Note 27 to the Consolidated

Financlal Statements.

Capltal Management
Details of the Group's capital management compliance and objectives are set out in Note 33 to the Consolidated

Financial Statements.
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Principal risks and uncertainties

Risk management Is an integral part of the Group’s business process. Risk management and governance
arrangements have been described in Note 27. The risks and uncertainties which are currently judged to have the
largest impact on the Group’s performance are noted below:

s General economic conditions may negatively affect consumer spending, resulting in declines in retail saies.
A worsening of the current financlal market conditions could materially and adversely affect the Group’s
business, financlal conditions and results of operations;

s The Group faces strong competition In its various markets and if it fails to compete successfully, market
share and profitabitity may decline;

+ The Group is subject to changes in government and regulatory compliance regulations, as well as card
scheme membership requirements. Ensuring adherence to these regulations and requirements could result
in increased compliance costs for the Group and adversely affect operations and profitability;

¢ Movements In foreign currency exchange rates may positively or adversely affect the Group. The
management of this risk Is detailed in Note 27 to the Consolidated Financial Statements;

¢ The success of the Group Is built upon a strong effective management team committed to achieving a
superior performance in each of our divislons. The loss of key personnel could for a time have a significant
impact on business performance;

a In the current economic environment, Brexit also represents a level of uncertainty. Further information
relating to Brexit can be found on page 10.

+ In addition to the above, the Group is subject to operational risks, These include technoltogy and systems
executioh risk, protection of cardholder data, information security breaches and data protection
compliance, compliance with card schemes, payment card industry standards, business continuity planning
and disaster recovery.

Directars' and Secretary's shareholdings
The names of the persons who were Directors at any time during the year ended 31 December 2018 are listed on
page 6. Unless otherwise indicated, they served as Directors for the entire year.

The Directors and their familles had no interests in the shares of the Bank as at 31 December 2018. The Directors’
and Secretary’s interest In the ordinary shares of the ultimate parent undertaking, U.S. Bancorp at 31 December
2018 and at 31 December 2017 are not disclosed as they do not represent more than 1% of the nominal issued share

capital.

Directors’ responsibilities statement
The Directars are responsible for preparing the Directors’ Report and the Financial Statements in accordance with

Irish law and regulations.

Irish company law requires the Directors to prepare the Financial Statements for each financial year. Under that law
the Directors have elected to prepare the Financial Statements in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the European
Union {"EU’). Under company law, the Directors must not approve the Financial Statements unless they are satisfied
that they give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities and financlal position of the Group at the financial year
end date and of the profit or loss of the Group for the financial year and otherwlse comply with the Companies Act
2014 and the European Union (Credit Institutions: Financlal Statements} Regulations, 2015 and, in respect of the
Consolidated Financial Statements, Article 4 of the International Accounting Standards (‘1AS’) Regulation.

In preparing these Financial Statements, the Directors are required to:

s select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

» make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

s prepare the Financial Statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
Group will continue in business; and

s state whether the Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with applicable accounting
standards, identify those standards and note the effect and the reasons for any material departure from those
standards.
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The Directors are respansible for ensuring that the Group keeps, or causes to be kept, adequate accounting records
which correctly explain and record the transactions of the Group, enable at any time the assets, liabilities, financial
poslition and profit or lass of the Group to be determined with reasonable accuracy, enable them to ensure that the
Financlal Statements and Directors’ Repart comply with the Companies Act 2014 and enable the Financial
Statements to be audited. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Statement of relevant audit information
In the case of each of the Directors at the time the report is approved:
¢ sofarasthe Directors are aware, there is na relevant audit information of which the Group's statutory auditors
are unaware; and
e the Directors have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a director in order to make themselves
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Group's statutory auditors are aware of that
information.

Directors’ compliance statement pursuant to Section 225 of the Companles Act 2014
The Directors acknowledge that they are responsible with securing the Group’s compliance with its relevant
obligations; and, state as foilows:

Far the year covered by this report, it is confirmed that the Group’s arrangements or structures which support the
achlevement of the objectives of the Group’s Compliance Policy Statement have been reviewed and it has been
affirmed that the Group maintains a register of all relevant policies, framework documents, terms of reference,
guidelines and processes which are designed to secure material compliance with, and support the conclusion that,
the Group Is In compliance with all its relevant obligations (collectively the “Applicable Compliance Policies”). The
Directors have been Issued with a report setiing out these Applicable Compliance Policies and the relevant
obligations to which they apply. The Group has utilised this review and report as the means of ascertaining that the
appropriate arrangements and structures are present to insure compliance with the Group’s relevant obligations.

Brexit

The Group is adjusting its future target operating model to ensure it is well positioned to manage all possible Brexit
scenarios. To ensure that the business is protected, the Group has assumed a Hard Brexit as a future operating
model planning assumption. In advance of the 29th of March, the Group Is transferring business that is currently
being provided from the UK to European Economic Area {‘EEA’) customers, to an EEA jurisdiction. Additionally, the
Group will transfer certain non-regulated activities currently performed by the Group, to a separate legal entity
within the UK which is separate to the Group. For on balance sheet exposures, certain EEA deposits will be maoved
from the UK to within the EEA during Q4’12 and Q1°20.

A disarderly Brexit related event could potentially give rise to negative macroeconotnic effects for the Group. The
Group’s revenue is correlated to economic activity and particularly to the level of domestic consumption with a
market. An adverse shock to economic growth rates arising from Brexit would have the potential to adversely
affect revenues, while further devaluation of GBP versus Euro will have negative impacts on future net income.
Negative macroeconomic effects from a disarderly Brexit may also adversely affect the counterparties and
merchant customers of the Group. This can in turn affect bath the propensity for revenue reduction and, in more
difficult circumstances, losses associated with counterparty failure.

Madermn slavery statement

The Modern Slavery Statement by the Group is made pursuant to Section 54, Part 6 of the Medern Slavery Act 2015
and sets out the steps that the Group is taking to ensure that slavery and human trafficking is not taking place in the
Group’s supply chains or in any part of the business, The Group complies with all relevant Employment laws including
laws relating to working conditions of staff and has relevant policies and procedures in place to ensure the
requirements are followed.

This statement was approved by the Board of Directors on 5 December 2018 and can be found at
www.elavon.co.uk/about-elavon/legal.html.

10




Directors’ Report (continued)

Corporate Soclal Respansibility Report

The Group recognises and embraces its responsihilities as an important contributor to the economies in which it
operates, with a genuine desire ta contribute in a wider sense to society including through. the initiatives described
in the Corporate Social Respansibillty Report. This report has been approved by the Board an 21* March 2019 and

can be faund at www.elavon.le.

Dividend
No dividend is proposed for the year (2017: nil). The Directors do not recommend any transfer to reserves.

Research and development
During the year the Group incurred development costs in relation to internally developed software which has been

capitalised.

Branches outside the State
The Bank has branches, within the meaning of EU Council Directive 89/666/EEC, in the United Kingdom, Germany,

Poland, Norway, Spain and Belgium.

Events after the reporting period
There are no subsequent events after the reporting date that require disclosure in the Financial Statements.

Political donations
No political donations, which require disclosure In accordance with the Electoral Acts, 1997 to 2002 were made by

the Group during the year.

Corporate governance
The Group is subject to the provisions of the Central Bank of Ireland’s Corporate Governance Requirements for Credit

Institutions 2015. The Group Is not classified as a “high impact designated credit institution” for the purposes of the
Code and is therefore not subject to the additional requirements of Appendix 1 of the Code.

Subsidiary companies
Detalls of the Group’s subsidiaries are set out in Note 31 to the Consolidated Financfal Statements in accordance

with the Companies Act 2014,

Board Audit Committee

The Board Audit Committee has been delegated authority to provide assistance tc the Board In fulfilling its
responsibility to the shareholders with respect to its oversight of the financial reporting pracess and the quality and
integrity of the Group’s financial statements; the Group’s internal controls and compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements; the statutory audit of the annual and consolidated accounts; the independence of the Group’s auditor,
and the provision of additional services to the Group; and the effectiveness of the Group's Internal Audit function.

Accounting records
The measures taken by the Directors to ensure compliance with the Group’s obligation to keep proper accounting

records, as outlined in Section 281-285 of the Companies Act 2014, are the use of appropriate systems and
proceduras and the employment of competent persons who report to the Chief Financial Officer and ensure that the
requirements of the legislation are complied with. The accounting records are kept at 1% Floor, Bullding 8,

Cherrywoaod Business Park, Loughlinstown, D18 W319.

Auditors

Mazars Statutory Auditor have expressed their willingness to continue In office and were re-appointed by the Board
on 22™ March 2018 in accordance with Section 383(2) of the Companles Act 2014,

Approved and authorised for Issue en 21 March 2019.

}r&uv» N/ ’

Daclan h‘\ch \ Cralg Gifford

Stephen Grparke
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Elavon Financlal Services DAC
Consolidated Statement of Income for the year ended 31 December

in thousands of Euro Note 2018 2017
Net fee and commission income 3 291,110 291,113
interest income 4 14,876 8,167
interest expense 4 {3,859) {1,594)
Net interest income 11,117 6,513
Other operating income 5 17,027 16,685
Share in loss of associate 12 {203) -
Total operating Income 319,051 314,311
Operating expense 7 (272,244)  {245,983)
Foreign exchange loss 7 {3,095) {(3,696)
Total other operating expense (275,339) (249,679)
Profit for the year from continuing operattans before taxation 43,712 64,632
Income tax expense 8 {7,923} {12,090)
Profit for the year from continuing operations 35,789 52,542
Discontinued operation

Loss from discontinved operation, net of tax 11 - (21,897)
Profit for the year

attributable entirely to equity holders 35,789 30,645
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Elavon Financial Services DAC
Consolidated Statement of Other Comprehensive Income for the year ended 31 December

In thousands of Euro Note 2018 2017
Profit for the year 35,789 30,645
Other comprehensive income that may be reclassified to the Consolldated Statement of Income

Foreign currency translation recognised directly in equity (2,785) {9,287)
Tax effect - -
Foreign currency transiation recognised directly in equity, net of tax (2,785) (9,287)
Unrealised gain on financial assets available for sale - 2,879
Realised gain reclassified to the Consolidated Statement of Income - {4,157}
Tax effect - 330
Movement on financial assets available for sale, net of tax - (948)
Other comprehensive income that will not be reclassifled to the Consolidated Statement of Income
Re-measurement of defined benefit plans 24 (892) 1,533
Tax effect 107 (191)
Re-measurement of defined benefit plans, net of tax (785} 1,342
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax (3,570} (8,893)
Total comprehensive income, net of tax 32,219 21,752
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Elavon Financlal Setrvices DAC

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December

In thousands of Euro Note 2018 2017
Assets

Balances at central banks 9 6,397,162 8,833,491
Due from banks g 132,784 212,720
investments with affiliates 10 104,803 288,896
Receivables from issuing banks 14 485,788 696,475
Investment services receivables 15 12,700 13,548
Merchant receivables 13 79,942 62,994
Current tax asset 4,803 -
Other assets 19 96,807 47,813
intangible assets — goodwilf 16 128,088 128,688
Intangible assets — other 17 12,788 13,546
Property, plant and equipment 18 46,737 44,351
Investment in associate 12 1,797 -
Deferred tax asset B 3,393 3,414
Total assets 7,507,592 10,345,936
Liabilities

Overdrafts g 69,112 11,865
Corporate trust deposits 20 5,629,841 8,317,102
Merchant payables 21 619,250 864,341
Current tax liability 43,296 41,772
Other liabilities 22 74,509 73,931
Provisions 23 5,979 2,852
Deferred tax liability 8 3,285 3,332
Total liabllities 6,445,272 9,315,195
Equity

Share capital 25 6,400 6,400
Capital contribution 26 589,389 589,389
Retained earnings 518,740 483,591
Foreigh currency translation reserve {46,348} (43,563)
Pension re-measurement reserve {5,861) {5,076)
Total equity 1,062,320 1,030,741
Total liabilitles and equity 7,507,592 10,345,936

Approved for Issue, by the Board, on 21 March 2019,

date 0

Declan Lynch

Stephen fGroarke

VX

Craig Gé‘ﬁ)r(/ i f
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;‘ Elavon Financial Services DAC
| Consalidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 December

In thousands of Euro Note 2018 2017
Cash flows from operating activities
Praofit before tax 43,712 42,735
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment losses 7 19,324 19,517
Losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment 7 411 253
Share in profit of joint venture 11 - {1,407)
Share in loss of associate 12 203 -
Loss on sale of discontinued operation - 21,917
Realised gain on sale of financial assets 5 - (4,157)
Interest income {15,165) (7,683)
Interest expense 3,644 1,436
Dividend income on available for sale financial assets {10) {906)
Working capital adjustments
Increase in prepayments and other receivables 19 (39,769) (644)
Increase in Visa Europe deferred consideration receivables 19 (660} {635)
Increase In accruals and sundry creditors 22 295 16,217
Met change In receivables from issuing banks 14 210,587 (217,681)
Net change In merchant receivables {17,555) 1,421
Net change in investment services receivables 844 (2,516)
Net change in other assets (13,376) 1,498
Net change in due to other banks - {646}
Net change in merchant payables 21 {245,091) 147,168
Net change in corporate trust deposits 20 (2,687,261} 1,542,351
Net change in other liabilities 3,213 {39,517}
Interest paid on short term borrowings 4 (225) (156}
Interest paid on corporate trust deposits {3,419} (1,280)
Taxation paid (6,447) (15,727)
Net cash used in operating activities {2,746,645) 1,502,158

Cash flows from Investing actlvities

Interest received on investments and cash balances 15,165 7,683
Net decrease in investments with affiliates 10 184,093 940,849
Net (increase)/decrease in investment in associate 12 {2,000) -
Disposal of joint venture: consideration received 11 - 72,000
Praceeds from sale of financial assets - 20,787
Dividend income on avaiiahle for sale financial assets 10 906
Additions to property, plant and equipment 18 {23,404) {21,521)
Disposal of property, plant and equipment 4,603 1,043
Additions to intangible fixed assets i7 {2,887) {2,840}
Net cash provided by Investing activitles 175,580 1,018,307




[ Elavon Financial Services DAC
’ Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 December ~ continued

In thousands of Etiro Note 2018 2017
Cash flows from financing activities

Payments for Parent Company re-charges for share-based payments 26 (538) {434)
Net cash used in financing activitles {588} (434)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equlvalents {1,859} (6,939)
Net Increase/{decrease) In cash and cash equivalents (2,573,512) 2,513,692
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 9 5,034,346 6,520,654
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year g 6,460,834 9,034,346
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Elavon Financial Services DAC
Company Statement of Income for the year ended 31 December

In thousands of Euro Note 2018 2017
Net fee and commission income A 286,911 287,649
Interest income 4 14,976 8,107
Interest expense 4 {3,859} (1,594)
Net interest Income 11,117 6,513
Other operating income B 19,930 19,778
Share in loss of assoclate 12 {203) -
Totzl operating iIncome 317,755 313,940
Operating expense C (271,213)  (245,775)
Forelgn exchange loss C {3,096) {3,745)
Total other operating expense (274,308)  (249,520)
Profit for the year from contlnuing opérations before taxation 43,446 64,420
Income tax expense D {7,885) {12,056)
Profit for the year from continuing operations 35,561 52,364
Discontinued operation

Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax 11 - {21,897)
Profit for the year

attributable entirely to equity holders 35,561 30,467

Numetic note references refer to the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements. Letter note references refer to

the Notes to the Company Financial Statements.
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Elavon Financlal Services DAC
Company Statement of Other Comprehensive Income for the year ended 31 December

In thousands of Euro Note 2018 2017
Profit for the year 35,561 30,467
Other comprehenslve income that may be reclassified to the Company Statement of Income

Foreign currency translation recognised directly in equity (2,722} (9,209}
Tax effect - -
Foreign currency translation racognised directly In equity, net of tax {2,722) (9,209)
Unrealised gain on financial assets available for sale - 2,879
Realised gain reclassified to the Company Statement of Income - (4,157)
Tax effect - 330
Unreallsed gain on financlal assets available for sale, net of tax - {948)

Other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to the Company Statement of Income

Re-measurement of defined benefit plans 24 (892) 1,533
Tax effect : 107 (191)
Re-measurement of defined benafit plans, net of tax (785) 1,342
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax (3,507) (8,815)
Total comprehensive income, net of tax 32,054 21,652

Numeric note references refer to the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements. Letter note references refer to
the Notes to the Company Financial Statements.
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Elavon Financlal Services DAC
Company Statement of Financial Poslition as at 31 December

In thousands of Euro Note 2018 2017
Assets

Balances at central banks 9 6,397,162 8,833,491
Due from banks 9 132,784 212,720
Investments with affiliates . 10 104,803 288,896
Receivables from issuing banks ' 14 485,788 696,475
Investment services receivables F 9,836 10,832
Merchant receivables 13 79,942 62,994
Current tax asset 4,797 -
Other assets G 98,051 47,811
Intangible assets - goodwill 16 128,088 128,688
intangible assets - other 17 12,788 13,546
Property, plant and equipment 18 46,737 44,351
Investment in subsidiary E 4,908 4,508
[nvestment {n associate 12 1,797 -
Deferred tax asset D 3,393 3,414
Total assets 7,510,914 10,348,126
Liabilities

Overdrafts 9 69,112 11,865
Corporate trust deposits 20 5,629,841 8,317,102
Merchant payables 21 619,250 864,341
Current tax liability 43,292 41,757
Other liabilities H 78,778 76,914
Provisions 29 5,879 2,852
Deferred tax llability . D 3,285 3,332
Total llabilities 6,449,537 9,318,163
Equity

Share capital 25 6,400 6,400
Capital contribution 26 589,389 589,389
Retained eamings 517,500 482,579
Forelgn currency translation reserve (46,051) (43,329)
Penslon re-measurement reserve (5,861) (5,076)
Total equity 1,061,377 1,029,963
Total llabilities and equity 7,510,914 10,348,126

MNumeric note references refer to the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements, Letter note references refer to
the Notes to the Company Financial Statements.

Approved for Issue, by the Board, on 21 March 2019,

btee N4

Declan Lynch | Cralg Giffded /

Stephen Grparke
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Elavan Financlal Services DAC

Company Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 December

In thousands of Euro Note 2018 2017
Cash flows from operating activitles
Profit before tax 43,446 42,523
Adjustments to reconcile prafit before tax to net cash
Deprediation, amortisation and impairment losses 7 19,324 19,517
Losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment 7 411 253
Share in profit of joint venture 11 - {(1,407)
Share in loss of associate 203 -
Loss on sale of discontinued operation - 21,917
Realised gain on sale of financial assets 5 - (4,157)
Interest income (15,165} (7,683)
Interest expense 3,644 1,436
Dividend income on available for sale financial assets {10} (906)
Working capital adjustments
Increase In prepayments and other recelvables G {(39,769) {644}
Increase in Visa Europe deferred consideration receivable G {660) {635)
Increase in accruals and sundry creditors H 296 16,218
Net change In recelvables from Issuing banks 14 210,687 {217,681)
Net change in merchant receivables (17,555) 1,421
Net change in investment services receivables 992 {1,862)
Net change in other assets (14,656) 2,133
Net change in due to other bainks - {646}
Net change in merchant payables 21 {245,091) 147,168
Net change in corporate trust deposits 20 {2,687,261) 1,542,951
Net change in other liabilities 4,497 (40,693)
Interest pafd on short term borrowlngs 4 {225) (156)
Interest paid on corporate trust deposits (3,419) {1,280)
Taxation paid {6,397) (15,707}
Net cash used in operating activitles (2,746,708} 1,502,080
Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received on investments and cash balances 15,165 7,683
Net decrease in investments with affiliates 10 184,093 940,849
et (increase)/decrease in investment in associate 12 {2,000} -
Disposal of joint venture consideratlon received 1 - 72,000
Proceeds from sale of financial assets - 20,787
Dividend income on avallable for sale financial assets 10 906
Additions to property, plant and equipment 18 (23,403) {21,521)
Disposal of property, plant and equipment 4,603 1,043
Additions to Intangible fixed assets 17 {2,887) (2,840)
Nat cash provided by investing activities 175,580 1,018,907
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Elavon Financial Services DAC
Company Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 December

In thousands of Euro Note 2018 2017
Cash flows from financing activities

Payments for Parent Company re-charges for share-based payments 26 {588) (434)
Net cash used In financing activities (588) (434)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents {1,796} {6,861)
Net increase/(decrease) In cash and cash equivalents (2,573,512} 2,513,692
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 9 9,034,346 6,520,654
Cash and cash equivaients at the end of the year 9 6,460,834 9,034,346

Numeric note references refer to the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements. Letter note references refer to
the Notes to the Company Financial Statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 Basis of Preparation

Reporting entity

Elavon Financial Services DAC Is a company incorporated and domiciled in Ireland. The address of the Bank's
registered office {s Building 8, Cherrywood Business Park, Loughlinstown, D18 W319.

The Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of Elavon Financial Services DAC, its branches and Its
subsidlary undertakings and include all activity through to the end of the financial year. The Company Financial
Statements include the accounts of Elavon Financial Services DAC and its branches.

The Bank commenced operations on 8 December 2006. Its ultimate parent undertaking is U.S. Bancerp, a company
incorporated in Delaware, U.S.A. The Bank and Its subsidiaries are the European platform for U.S. Bancorp’s card
acquiring and pracessing operations while also supporting additiona! payment service business lines. The Group has
been primarily involved in merchant acquiring operations. Since 2010, when the Group acquired a book of business
from Bank of America, the Group has been the European platform for U.S. Bancorp’s corporate trust business.

Statement of compliance
The Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EU and applicable

as at 31 December 2018. The accounting policies have been consistently applied by Group entities, except for the
new and amended IFRS EU and International Financial Reporting [nterpretations Committee (‘IFRIC’} interpretations
effective as of 1 January 2018. The Consolidated Financial Statements also comply with the requirements of Irish
Statute comprising the Companies Acts 2014 and the S.I. No. 266 of 2015 {European Union {Credit Institutions:
Financial Statements) Regutations 2015), and, in respect of the Consoalidated Financial Statements, Article 4 of the

IAS Regulation.

Basis of measurement
The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost basls, except for pension plans and

derivative financial instruments which have been measured at fair value.

Functional and presentatian currency

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group are presented in Euro {also referred to as ‘EUR’ and €'} rounded
to the nearest thousand {‘000). The Euro is the functional currency of the Bank. For other Group entities (i.e.
branches and subsidiaries), the functional currency is the local currency in the country in which they operate.

Use of estimates and assumptions
The preparation of the Group’s Consolidated Financlal Statements requires management to make judgements,

estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabllitles, and the
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertalnty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities
affected in future periods.

The estimates and judgements that have had the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the Group’s
financial statements are set out below.

Provisions
The recognltion and measurement of provisions, In certain instances, may involve a high degree of uncertzinty, and

therehy, considerabie time is expended on research in establishing the facts, scenario testing, assessing the
probability of the cutflow of resources and estimating the amount of any loss. This process will, of its nature, require
significant management judgement and will require revisions to earlier judgements and estimates as matters
progress towards conclusion. Details of the Group’s provisions are shown In Note 8 and Note 29 to the Consolidated

Financial Statements.

Goodwill and Intanglible Assets Impairment

Goodwiil and Intangible Assets are tested annually for impairment, based on value in use calculations that use a cash
flow maodel. The cash flows are derived from the management forecast for 2019 and assumptfons based on historical
volumes and revenue. This test requires significant management judgements as a result of the assumptions used in
this test, Additional details on goodwill impairment can be found in Note 16 to the Consolidated Financial

Statements.




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 Basis of Preparation (continued)
Other disclosures relating to the Group's exposure to risks and uncertaintles includes:
+  Capital management {Note 33)
¢ Risk management and policies {Nate 27}
s  Sensitivity analysis tables for Foreign Exchange Risk and Interest Rate Risk {Note 27)
IFRS 9 — Financial Instruments {Note 2)
IFRS 15 - Revenue from contracts with customers {Note 2)

Basis of consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity where the Group has the power, exposure or rights to variabie returns and the ability to use
its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group
until the date that control ceases. If the Group loses contral over a subsidiary, it derecognises the related assets,
liabilities and non-controlling interest and other components of equity while any gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss. Any investment retained is recognised at fair value. Subsidiaries have the same reporting perlod as the Group
and the same accounting policies. Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated upon consolidation.

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Palicies
The significant accounting policies that Elavon Financlal Services DAC and its subsidiary undertakings applied in the
preparation of the Group Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out below.

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previcus financial year, except for the new and
amended IFRS EU and IFRIC interpretations effective as of 1 January 2018 listed below. The Group has early adopted
IFRIC 23 as at 1 tanuary 2018, but has not early adopted any other standard, interpretation or amendment that has
been issued but is not yet effective. Although these new standards and amendments applied for the first time In
2018, they did not have a material impact an the annual Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group.

New and amended standards and interpretations
The Group applied IFRS 9, IFRS 15 and IFRIC 23 for the first time in 2018. The nature and effect of the changes as a

result of adoption of these new accounting standards are described below.

Several other amendments and interpretations apply for the first time in 2018, but do nat have an impact on the
Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments issued in July 2014 replaces IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement

for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, bringing together all three aspects of the accounting for
financial instruments: classification and measurement; impairment; and hedge accounting.

The Group has applied IFRS 9 with the initial application date of 1 January 2018 and is availing of the exemption not
to restate the prior period comparatives. Therefore, recognised differences arising between 1AS 39 carrying amounts
and IFRS 9 carrying amounts as at 1 January 2018 have been included in opening retained earnings on that date.

The change did not have a material impact on the Group’s operating, investing and financing cash flows.
The nature of these adjustments are described below:

a) Classification and measurement

Financial Assets
Under IFRS 9, there are three principal classification categories for financial assets: amortised cost, fair value through

other comprehensive income {‘FVOCK) and fair value through profit or loss {‘FVTPL’). The classification is based on
two criterfa: the Group’s business model for managing the assets; and whether the instruments’ contractual cash
flows represent ‘solely payments of principal and interest’ on the principal amount outstanding.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
The assessment of the Group's business model, which is required by IFRS 9, was made as of the date of initial
application, 1 January 2018, and then applied retrospectively to those financial assets that were nat derecognised
before 1 January 2018. The further assessment, also required by IFRS 9, of whether contractual cash flows on
financial assets are solely comprised of principal and interest was made based on the facts and circumstances as at
the Inftial recognition of the assets. In performing the IFRS 9 impairment assessment to estimate lifetime ECL and
consistent with its credit risk monitoring procedures, the Group buckets trade receivables into 3 different categories

In arder ta mare precisely estimate the expected ECL on the portfolio of trade recelvables.

The classification and measurement requirements of IFRS 9 did not have a significant Impact on the Group. The
Group continued measuring at falr value all financial assets previously held at fair value under [AS 39.

In summary, upon adoption of IFRS 9 as at 1 January 2018, the Group has the following reclassifications:

Original New
Original classification New carrying carrylng

In thousands of Eurc classlfication
under IAS 39 under {FRS 8 amount amount
under IAS39 wunderiFRS 9
Balances at central banks Loans and receivables Amortised cost 8,833,491 8,833,491
Due from banks Loans and receivables Amortised cost 212,720 212,720
Merchant receivables® Loans and receivables Amortised cost 62,994 62,386
Receivables from issuing banks Loans and receivables Amortised cost 696,475 696,475
Investment services receivables* Loans and recelvables  Amortised cost 13,548 13,544
Forward exchange contracts FVTPL FVTPL 376 376
Other assets: commercial loans receivable* Loans and receivables Amortised cost 19,697 19,669
9,839,301 9,838,661

Total financial assets

*The change in catrying amount Is a result of an additional impairment allowance. See the discussion on impairment

on the following page.

Financial Liabilities

Financlal Liabilities are measured at either FVTPL when they meet the definition of held for trading or upon election
at initial recognition of the fair value option, or amortised cost.

The Group has not designated any financial liabilities as at fair value through profit and loss as a result of adopting
IFRS 9. There are no changes in classification and measurement for the Group's financial liabilities.

Original New
Original classification . New carrying carrying

in thousands of Euro classification
under JAS 39 under IFRS 9 amount amount
under IAS 39  under IFRS 9
Overdrafts Amortised cost Amortised cost 11,865 11,865

Other liabillties

- Commercial loans — payable Amortised cost Amortised cost 1,563 1,563
- Corporate payables Amortised cost Amortised cost 1,619 1,619
- Aceruals and sundry creditors Amortised cost Amortised cost 45,798 45,798
Forward exchange contracts FVTPL FVTPL 1,233 1,233
Coarporate trust deposits Amortised cost Amortised cost 8,317,102 8,317,102
Merchant payables Amortised cost Amortised cost 864,341 864,341
9,243,521 9,243,521

Total financial liabilitles
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b) Impairment
The adoption of IFRS 9 has fundamentally changed the Group’s accounting for impairment losses for financial assets
by replacing IAS 39's incurred loss approach with a forward-looking expected credit loss (‘ECL') approach. IFRS 9
requires the Group to recognise an allowance for ECLs for assets held at amortised cost and contract assets.

Upon the adoption of IFRS 9, the Group recognised additional impairment on the Group’s Merchant receivables,
Investment services receivables and Commercial loans receivahles of EUR 608 thousand, EUR 4 thousand and EUR
28 thousand, respectively, which resulted in a decrease in Retained Earnings of EUR 640 thousand as at 1 January
2018,

Set out below Is the reconciliation of the closing Consolidated Statement of Financial Position balances in accordance
with IAS 39 to the opening balances determined in accordance with IFRS 9:

in thousands of Euro

IAS 39 carrying {FRS 9 Carrying
Financial assets amountasat3l Remeasurement  amount 1January
December 2017 2018

Amortised cost {Loans and receivables)
Merchant receivables 62,994 (608) 62,386
Investment services receivables 13,548 {4) 13,544
Qther assets: commercial loans receivable 19,697 (28} 19,669
Total amortised cost 96,239 (640) 95,599

Set out below is the reconciliation of the closing impairment allowances in accordance with 1AS 39 to the opening
boss allowances determined in accordance with IFRS 9:

in thousands of Euro

IAS 39 provision 31 IFRS 9 expected
Remeasurement credit losses 1

December 2017
January 2018
Merchant receivables 332 608 940
Investment services receivables - 4 4
Other assets: commercial loans receivable - 28 28
332 640 972

€) Hedge Accounting
The hedge accounting requirements of IFRS 9 did not have a material impact on the Group. Any derivatives entered
into by the Group are generally traded in an over-the-counter market and are short term, and therefore will not be

impacted.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15 supersedes |AS 18 Revenue and defines principfes for recognising revenue from contracts with customers.
The guidance does not apply to interest and fee income integral to financial instruments and leases. The Group
adopted IFRS 15 on 1 January 2018. The effect of adopting did not have a material impact an the Consolidated
Financlal Statements, The prior year Financial Statements have been rastated for presentational purposes.
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IFRIC Interpretation 23 Uncertalnty over Income Tax Treatment
The interpretation addresses the accounting for income taxes when the tax treatments involve uncertainty that
affacts the application of IAS 12 and does not apply to taxes or levies outside the scope of IAS 12, nor does it
specifically indude requirements relating to interest and penalties associated with uncertain tax treatments. The
interpretation specifically address the following:

s Whether an entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately

e The assumptions an entity makes about the examination of tax treatments by taxation authorities

+ How an entity determines taxable profit {tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax

rates
+ How an entity considers changes In facts and circumstances

An entity has to determine whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment separately or together with one or
more other uncertain tax treatments. The approach that better predicts the resolution of the uncertainty should be
followed. The interpretation is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 january 2013, but
certain transition reliefs are available. IFRIC 23 was adopted an 1 January 2018 and did not have a materlal impact
on the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Business combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition methad. The cost of an acquisition Is measured as the
aggregate of the consideration transferred at acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-controlling
Interests in the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling
interests in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s Identifiable net assets.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred and Included in administrative expenses.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the flnandal assets and liabllities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This Includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the

acquiree as appropriate.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer will be recognised at falr value at the acquisition date.
Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration liability will be recognised in the Consclidated
Statement of Income, The determination of the fair value is based on discounted cash flows. The key assumptions
take into conslderation the probability of meeting each performance target and the discount factor.

Investment In associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence, Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but does not represent control or joint
contral over thase policies.

A joint venture {‘JV'} is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the JV. loint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing
contral.

The considerations made in determining significant influence ar joint control are similar to those necessary to
determine control over subsidiaries. The Group’s investment in its IV and associate are accounted for using the

equity method.

Under the equity method, the investment is initially recognised at cost. The carrying amount of the investment is
adjusted to recognise changes in the Group’s share of net assets of the JV or associate since the acquisition date.
Goodwill relating to the JV or associate is included in the carrying amount of the investment and is neither amortised
nor individually tested for impairment.
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The Consolidated Statement of Income reflects the Group’s share of the results or operations of the JV or associate.
Any change in Other Comprehensive Income ("OCI’) of those investees is presented as part of the Group's OCl. In
addition, when there has been a change recognised directly in the equity of the JV or associate, the Group recognises
its share of any changes, when applicable, In the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity. Unrealised gains and
losses resulting from the transactions between the Group and the 1V or associate are eliminated to the extent of the
interest in the JV or associate.

The aggregate of the Group’s share of profit or lass of a IV or associate is shown on the face of the Consolidated
Statement of Income outside operating profit and represents profit or loss after tax and non-controlling interests in
the subsidiaries of the JV or associate.

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the JV or associate are prepared for the same reporting period as the
Group. When necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accaunting policies in line with those of the Group.

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise an impairment
loss on its investment in [ts V or assoclate. At each reporting date, the Group determines whether there is objective
evidence that the investment in the IV or associate Is impaired. If there is such evidence, the Group calculates the
amount of the impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the IV or associate and its carrying
value, and then recoghises the loss within “Share of profit of joint venture/associate’ in the Consofidated Statement
of Income.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate or jolnt cantrol over the JV, the Group measures and recognises
any retained investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the IV or associate upon
loss of significant influence or Joint control and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal
is recognised in the Consalidated Statement of Income.

Foreign currency transiation

Group companles

As at the reporting date, assets and liabilities of subsidiarles and branches dencminated in a foreigh currency are
translated Into the Group's presentation currency, {EUR), at the exchange rate on the Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position. Exchange differences arising on translation are recorded directly to OCl. On disposal of a
subsidiary, deferred cumulative amounts are recognised in reafised exchange gain or loss in the Consolidated
Statement of [Income. The Consolidated Statement of Income is translated to the Group's presentation currency at
the respective functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Transactions and balances

Non-monetary Items that are measured In terms of historical cost in foreign currencies are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the inltial transaction. Non-monetary ltems measured at fair value in foreign
currencies are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retransiated at the functional currency spot
rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date, Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognised in profit or loss,

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settiement of such transactions and from the retranslation at
year end exchange rates of monetary assets and llabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the
Consolidated Statement of income.

Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Income for all interest bearing financial
instruments using the effective interest rate method. The effective interest rate method Is the interest rate on a loan
or financial product restated from the nominal interest rate as an interest rate with annual compound interest
payable In arrears. Negative interest expense is classified under bank processing fees in the current and prior year.
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Other aperating Income
Other operating income consists primarily of income from services provided to affiliate companies, forelgn exchange

gains an non-trading assets and liabilities and galns in derivatives’ fair values. Other operating income alsa includes
income received on investments.

Leases

Operating leases

As a lessor, lease income on point-of-sale terminal equipment, is recognised in fee and commission income on a
straight line basis over the life of the |ease. Payments made under operating leases are recognised In the
Consolidated Statement of Income on a straight line basis over the term of the lease. Lease incentives received, or
premiums paid at inception of the lease, are recognised over the term of the iease,

Revenue Recognition

In the ordinary course of business, the Group recognises income derived from various revenue generating activities,
Certain revenues are generated from contracts where they are recagnised when, or as, services or products are
transferred to customers for amounts the Group expects to be entitled. Revenue generating activities related to
financtal Instruments are also recognised, including leases, foreign currency translations and equity investments.

Revenue is generated from the following:

Elavon Merchant Services
EMS fee and commission income consists principally of merchant discount and other transaction and account

management fees charged to merchants for providing electronic processing of card association network
transactions. Revenue is recognised at the time the merchant processing services are performed. EMS revenue is
presented net of Interchange paid to the card-lssuing bank and card association assessments, which are charges
collected on behalf of the card issuers and payment networks. EMS revenue is also presented net of revenue sharing
amounts and any amounts written off per the Group’s write off policy. The Group may enter Into revenue sharihg
agreements with partners who refer merchants or in connection with purchases of merchant contracts from sellers,
The revenue sharing amounts are determined primarily on sales volume processed or revenue generated for a
particular group of merchants, EMS revenue also inciudes revenues related to point-of-sale equipment recorded as
sales when the equipment is shipped or as earned for equipment rentals.

Global Corporate Trust Services

Trust and investment management fees are recognised over the period In which services are performed and are
based on a percentage of the fair value of the assets under management or administration, fixed based on account
type, or transaction-based fees. Services provided to clients include trustee, transfer agent, custodlan, fiscal agent,

and escrow.

Corporate Payment Systems

CPS generates its income from two lines of business: Corporate Card Issuance and Freight Payment Solutions.
Corporate Card Issuance acts as the issuing bank that offers bank cards to customers. Fee income Is generated by
charging Interchange fees for the authorization and settlement of card transactions. The Group records corporate
payment products revenue as services are provided. Corpaorate payment products revenue s presented net of card
association assessments and rebates to customers, Freight Payment Solutions provides a streamlined global
payment network which automates customer invoicing and payment process. Fee Income Is generated by charging
the buyer a fee for this service, Discount fees are also earned on counterparty finance, whereby a percentage is
deducted off the amount paid to the seller.

Staff costs

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term emplayee benefits, such as wages and salaries, sacial security costs and other benefits are accounted for
an an accruals basis over the period during which employees have provided services. Bonuses are recognised to the
extent that the Group has z legal or constructive abligation to its employees that can be measured reliably.
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Long-term incentive benefit

The Group awards long-term incentlve benefits to some employees to encourage them to stay with the Group and
meet the Group’s long-term goals. This award is pald in cash and payments vests over three years. The cost is
recognised in Staff Costs expense (Note 7).

U.S. Bancorp also grants certain EU ldentified employees shares in U.S. Bancorp as a retention incentive, whereby
employees render services as consideration for equity instruments {equity-settied transactions), The number of
shares awarded is dependent on the annual award to the employee and the market price of the shares on the award
date. The vesting period of the shares is three years. Ownership Is transferable to employees after a three year period
if they remain in emplayment within the Group.

The cost of equity-settled transactions [s determined by the fair value at the date when the grant Is made using an
appropriate valuation model. That cost is recognised in Staff Costs expense (Note 7), together with a corresponding
increase in equity through Capita! Contribution, over the peried in which the service and, where applicable, the
performance conditions are fulfilled {the vesting period). U.S. Bancorp subsequently recharges the cost to the Group.

The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date
reflects the extent to which the vesting perlod has explred and the Group’s hest estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest, The expense or credit in the Consolidated Statement of Income for a period
represents the movement in cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelthood of the canditions being met is assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of
the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market perfarmance conditions are reflected within the
grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without an assoclated service requirement, are
considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the falr value of an award and lead
to an immedlate expensing of an award unless there are also service and/or performance conditions.

Pensions
The Group provides employees with post-retirement benefits mainly in the form of pensions - defined centribution

and defined benefit pension plans. The cost of the Group's defined contribution plans is charged to the Consolidated
Statement of Income In the accounting period in which it is Incurred. Any cantributions unpaid at the end of the
reporting period are recorded as a liability, The Group has no further obligation under these plans once these
contributions have been paid. For defined benefit pension plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using
the projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each reporting period.

Defined benefit costs are split into three categories:
= Current service cost, past service cost, gains and Josses on curtailments and settlements;

= Netinterest expense or income; and
»  Re-measurement.

The Group presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in the line item “Pension Costs — defined
benefit plans” within Operating Expenses In the Consolidated Statement of Income. Curtailment gains or losses are
accounted for as past service costs. Re-measurement is recorded in OC.

Re-measurement comprising of actuarial gains and losses, are recognised immediately in the Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position with a gain/loss to OCl In the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods, Past service cost is recognised in profit or loss in the period of
plan amendment. Net interestis calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position represents the
actual deficit or surplus in the Group's defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from this calculation is limited to
the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plans or reductions in future

contributions to the plans.
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Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a result of past events,
and It is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions currently held by the Group Include chargeback provisions, asset
retirement obligations and corporate card provisions. More information on these provisions can be found In Note 8
and Note 29 to the Consolidated Financial Statements,

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations whose existence will be confirmed only by uncertain future events
giving rise to present obligations where the transfer of economic benefit is uncertain or cannot be reliably measured.
They are not recognised but are disclosed in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements unless they are
remote.

Taxatlon

Income tax

Current income tax relating to items recognised directly in equity Is recognised in equity and not in the Consolidated
Statement of Income. Management perlodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where

appropriate.

Current income tax assets and liabflities for the current period are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
fram or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are
enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the Group operates and generates
taxable income. Deferred tax is provided using the liability methad on temporary differences at the reporting date
between the tax base of assets and Ifabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, axcept:

»  Where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting proflt nor taxable profit or loss; and

* In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, assoctates and
interests [n joint ventures, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductlble
temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

=  Where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

= In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and
interests in Joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it Is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be avaitable against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit wiil be available to allow all, or part, of the deferred tax asset to be
utllised.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. Deferred tax assets
and liabilltles are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the
liability Is settled, based on tax rates {and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting

date.

32




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {continued)
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liahilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to net current tax assets
and current income tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation

authority.

Tax benefits acquired as part of a business combination, but not satisfying the criterla for separate recognition at
that date, would be recognised subsequently if new information about facts and circumstances changed. The
adjustment would either be treated as a reduction to goodwill {as long as it does not exceed goodwilll) if incurred
during the measurement period or in profit or loss.

Uncertain tax

The Group recognises an uncertain tax provision where it is considered that there is uncertainty as to the taxation
treatment to be applied to transactions. This only applies in limited instances where it is considered that the nature
of the underlying taxation treatment is such that it may be subject to an alternative interpretation by a tax authority.

Financlal assets

The Group holds three categories of financial assets:
» financial assets held at amortised cost;
* financial assets at fair value through profit or loss {(other assets); and
= cash [nvestments,

Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade date, being the date on which the Group commits to
purchase or sell the assets. Transaction costs arising from financial assets that are immaterial from the perspective
of the Group are treated as an expense. While measurement criteria differ for each of these categorles, the carrying
amount Is a reasonable approximation of fair value for all financial assets. See Note 28.

Financial assets held at amortised cost

Financial assets held at amortised cost include receivables from issuing banks, merchant receivables and investment
services receivables. The objective of the business model far financial assets held at amortised cost is to hold these
assets to collect contractual cash flows. They arise when the Group provides money or services directly to a customer
with no intention of trading the financial asset. The Group applies a Solely Payments of Principal and Interest {‘SPPI')
test to determine if the cash flows from these assets are held sclely ta collect contractual cash flows. If the assets
are deemed to meet the SPPI test they are classified as financial assets measured at amortised cost and are Initially
recognised at falr value, including direct and incremental transaction costs, and are subsequently measured at

amortised cost less Impairment,

Interest is calculated using the effective Interest rate method and credited to the Consolidated Statement of income.
Impairment losses and translation differences on monetary items are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of
Income. Financial assets held at amortised cost are de-recoghised when the rights to receive cash flows from the
financial assets have expired or when the Group has transferred substantially afl the risks and rewards of ownership
and transfer quallfies for de-recognition in accordance with IFRS 8, Financial Instruments.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss {other assets)

The Group applies the SPPI test to financial assets and any asset that doesn’t meet either business model of held to
collect or held to collect and sell are classified as FVTPL. Derivative financial assets are held at FVTPL and are carried
as assets and included in other assets when the fair value is positive, and are carried as liabilities and included in
other liabilities when the fair value is negative.

In the ordinary course of business, the Group enters Into foreign exchange forwards for hedging purposes to manage
foreign currency risks, The Group does not enter inte derivative transactions for speculative purposes. Further
information on the Group’s financial risk management is presented in Note 27. All derivatives are recorded at fair
value on the date on which the contract is entered into. Subsequent changes in a derivative’s fair value are
recognised in other operating Income or expense.
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Fair value 1s the amount at which a financial instrument could be exchanged In a current transaction between willing
parties, other than in a forced sale or liquidation. Fair value is the price that would be received to seli an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
Management has used available market information in estimating the fair value of financial assets.

Cash investments
The Group places cash on deposit with U.S. Bank, on account with Central Banks and on fixed term deposits in the

open market.

Impalrment of financlal assets
It Is Group policy to make provisions for impairment of financlal assets to reflect the losses inherent in those assets

at the end of the reporting period. The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period the impairment of
financtal assets measured at amartised cost and at FVOCI on an expected credit loss (‘ECL’) basis. The measurement
of ECL Is based on a three-stage approach:

» Stage 1 - where finandal assets have not had a significant increase In credit risk since Initial recognition,
allowance is calculated considering 12 months of credit losses, This Is inclusive of the portion of lifetime
expected credit losses that represent the expected credit losses that result from default events on a financial
instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date.

e Stage 2 — where financial assets have had a significant Increase In credit risk since [nitial recognition but
does not have objective evidence of impairment, allowance is calculated considering the lifetime ECL. This
Is cafculated by applying the 1-year loss forecast for all financial assets held at amortised cost aged 31 - 90
days past due.

s Stage 3 — financial assets that are significantly deteriorated and impaired. The ECL represents lifetime
expected losses. FInancial assets held at amortised cost are deemed to be impaired when they have
defaulted. Default is considered when an obligor is 90+ days past due for the EMS, CPS and GCTS portfolios,

The Group monitors financial assets that are subject to impairment requirements to assess whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition on a regular basis. Below is a list of some of the examples
of impairment indicators that are reviewed:

»  Market value decline;

=  Negative changes in technology, markets, economy or laws;

»  increases in market interest rates;

= Obsolescence or physical damage; and

»  Economic performance is worse than expected.

The measurement of the loss allowance is based on the present value of the applicable financial assets expected
cash flows using the financial asset’s effective interest rate, The final ECL allowance is coupled with a qualitative
overlay which Is calculated quarterly.

The general approach far recognising and measuring a loss allowance is the same for financial assets measured at
amortised cost and those assets that are measured at FVOCIL. However, unlike amartised cost, the loss allowance on
assets at FVOCI are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Other Comprehensive Income and da not reduce
the carrying amount of the financial asset in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position.

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill is initiafly measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests, and any previous interest held, over the net identifiable assets

acquired and liabilities assumed.
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After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of
impairment testing, goadwill acquired in a business combination Is, from the acqulsition date, allocated to each of
the Group’s cash generating units {"CGU’) that are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether
other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a CGU and part of the operation within that unit Is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the disposed operation is included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the
gain or loss on disposal. Goodwili disposed in these circumstances is measured based on the relatfve values of the
disposed operation and the portion of the CGU retained.

For more information please see Note 16 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Other intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately are capitalised at cost and those identified in a business acquisition are

capitalised at fair value as at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at
amartised cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development {or from the development phase of an internal
project} Is recognised, If, and only if, all the following have been demenstrated:

»  the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

» the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or seltit;

= the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

=  how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits;

= the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to

use or sell the intangible assets; and
= the abllity to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its development,

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or infinite. There were no intangible assets with
infinite lives other than goodwill in 2017 or 2018. Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised on a cash flow basis
and this expense Is included on the Consolidated Statement of Income within operating expense. Amortisation
methods and perlods relating to these intangible assets are reviewed annually. Intangible assets with finite lives must
be tested for impairment where either there is an indicator of impairment or, in the case of material Intangible

assets, annually.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference hetween the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised In the Consolidated Statement of Income

when the asset is de-recognised.

Amortisation
The Group uses the following useful lives when calculating amortisation:

Class Useful life
Goodwill Infinite
Computer Software

- Software Purchased or Developed 3 - 10 years
- Software Licences 1-5years
Contracts

- Merchant Contracts 15 - 30 years
- Corporate Trust Contracts 8 years
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impairment of goodwill and other intangible ossets

The Group’s impairment test for goodwill and Intangible assets is based on value in use calculations that use a cash
flow model. The cash flows are derived from the forecast far 2019 and assumptions based on historical volumes and
revenue. The recoverable arount Is most sensitive to the average revenue margins applied in the cash flow model
aswell as the expected future cash inflows and the volume/margin attrition rates applied for extrapolation purposes.
The key assumptions used to determine the recoverable amounts are further explained in Notes 16 and 17.

The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair value less cost to sell, and its value in use. Value in use is
the present value of the expected future cash flows from a CGU. If the recoverable amount is less than the carrying
value, an impairment loss is charged to the Consolidated Statement of Income.

For ather intangible assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is
any indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication axists, the Group estimates the assets or CGU's recoverable amount.

A previously recognised impairment loss Is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. If that is the case, the
carrying amount of the asset is Increased to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses relating to goodwill cannot
be reversed for subsequent increases in its recoverable amount in future periods.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment, if

any. Additions and subsequent expenditures are capitalised only to the extent that they enhance the future
economic benefits expected to be derived from the asset.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight line basis over their estimated useful economic lives.
Depreclation Is calculated based on the gross carrying amount, less the estimated residual value (in the majority of
cases deemed to be nil) at the end of the assets’ economic lives.

Terminals under operating leases to customers, less accumulated depreciation, are included in property, plant and
equipment, Leasehold leases are amortised on a straight line basis over the lease term and amortisation is included

in depreciation expense,

The Group uses the following useful lives when calculating depreciation:

Class Useful life
Premises and leasehold improvements

- Freehold buildings

40 years

- Leasehold property

Life of lease, up to 20 years

- Leasehold improvements

Life of lease, up to 10 years

Office and computer equipment

- Computers and similar equipment 3 -5vyears
- Furniture, fittings and other equipment 3-10years
- Terminals leased to customers 5 years

The restdual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each
financial year end and adjusted prospectively, If appropriate. When reviewing residual values, the Group estimates
the amount that it would currently obtain for the disposal of the asset, after deducting the estimated cost of disposal
if the asset were already of the age and condition expected at the end of its useful life. Gains and losses on disposal
of property, plant and equipment are included as part of “sther operating income” or "other operating expense” In
the Consolidated Statement of [ncome.

An asset retirement obligation is recognised at the same time as the leasehaold improvements, i.e. when alterations
to property are made. The obligation Is therefore an expense related to the leasehold improvement and Is
depreciated over the term of the |ease.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Assets leased to customers

Assets |eased to customers, comprising point-cf-sale terminals, are classified as operating leases if the lease
agreements do not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership. The leased assets and their
associated installation costs are included within property, plant and equipment on the Group’s Consoalidated
Statement of Financial Position and depreciation is provided on the depreciable amount of these assets on a
systematic basis over their estimated useful lives. Lease income is recognised on a straight line basis over the period
of the lease.

Financtal liabllities

Financial liabilities include amounts due to banks, merchant payables and Corporate Trust deposits. Issued financial
liabilities ar their components are dassified as liabilities where the substance of the contractual arrangement results
in the Group having a present obligation to either deliver cash or another financial asset to the holder, to exchange
financial liabilities on terms that are potentially unfavourable or to satisfy the cbligation otherwise than by the
exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of equity shares.

Financial liabilities recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position and are initially measured at fair
value, being their issue proceeds (falr value of consideration received) net of transaction costs incurred.

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost with any difference between the proceeds net of
transaction costs and the redemption value is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Income using the
effective Interest rate method, with the exception of forward foreign contracts. The carrying value of financial
liabilitles is a reasonable approximation of fair value. The Group de-recognises a financial liability when its
contractual obligations are discharged, cancelled or expired.

Shareholders' equity
Share capital
Share capital refers to the funds that a company raises In exchange for issuing an ownership interest in the company

in the form of shares. It is presented as equity and represents 6,400,001 ordinary shares of €1 each.

Capital contribution
Capital contributions represent amounts recelved from US. Bancorp (via its subsidiary U.5. Bank National
Association) which are non-refundable and for which neither U.S. Bancorp nor 11.5. Bank National Association

receives shares,

Retained earnings
Retained earnings represent the undistributed accumulated profits of the Bank, its branches and its subsidiaries.

Other reserves
The other reserves are made up of the forelgn currency translation reserves and the pension re-measurement

reserve. The forelgn currency translation reserve represents the cumulative gains and losses on the translation of
the Group’s net investment in foreign operations. The pension re-measurement reserve represents actuarial gains
and lesses of the Group’s defined benefit plans.

Cash and cash equivalents

Far the purpases of the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise amounts due
from banks and overdrafts. They are convertible into cash with an insignificant risk of changes in value and with
original maturities of less than seven days. The Group classifies money market placements as cash and cash
equivalents due to the short term of these deposits. The Group does not consider investment with affiliates as part
of cash and cash equivalents. Part of the balances that the Group holds with central banks are held as Investments

to comply with regulatory requirements.
New accounting pronouncements with a future effective date

The standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance of the Group’s
Consolidated Financial Statements are disclosed below.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {continued)

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 was issued in January 2016 and It replaces |AS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining whether an Arrangement
contains a Lease, SIC-15 Operating Leases — Incentives and SIC-27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Invalving
the Legal Form of a Lease. IFRS 16 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of leases and requires lessees to account for all leases under a single on-balance sheet model similar to
the accounting for finance leases under IAS 17. The standard Includes two recognition exemptlons for lessees — leases
of ‘law-value’ assets (e.g., personal computers) and short-term leases {i.e. leases with a lease term of 12 months or

less),

At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make |ease payments and an asset
representing the right to use the underlying asset during the lease term. Lessees will be required to separately
recognize the interest expense on the lease Yiability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset.

Lessees will also be required to remeasure the lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events. The lessee will
generally recognise the amount of the remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use
assel. Lessor accounting under IFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from today’s accounting under 1AS 17. Lessors will
continue to classify all leases using the same classification principle as in IAS 17 and distinguish between two types
of leases; operating and finance leases.

IFRS 16, which is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, requires lessees and lessars to
make mare extensive disclosures than under IAS 17. The Group is currently reviewing the impact that adopting IFRS
16 will have on the Consolidated Financlal Statements.
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3 Net Fee and Commission lncome

[ Net Fee and Commission Income )
In thousands of Euro 2018 2017
Merchant processing services 245,346 246,756
Corporate payment products revenue 4,899 4,553
Corporate trust revenue 40,865 39,304

[ Net fee and commission Income 291,110 291,113 [

4 Interest Income and Expense

| Interest Income and Expense . Ii
in thousands of Euro Note 2018 2017
Interest income
Interest from central banks 10,495 3,553
Interest from other banks 1,546 1,357
Interest income from affiliate companies 32 2,935 3,197
Total interest income 14,976 8,107
Interest expense
Interest expense on short term borrowings 225 156
Interest expense on Corporate Trust deposits 3,634 1,438
Total interest expense 3,859 1,594

[ Net interest Income 11,117 6,513 i

5 Other Operating Income

[ Other Operating Income _ |
In thousands of Euro 2018 2017
Dividend income on available for sale financial assets 10 906
Realised gain on sale of financial assets* - 4,157
Services provided to affiliate companies 16,815 11,577
Recovery of finance lease losses - 10
Other operating income - Other 202 35

| Other oparating Income 17,027 16,685 |

*The realised gain on sale of financial assets relates to the sale of Visa Shares.

6 Staff Numbers

| staff Numbers i
Average number of employees during the year 2018 2017
Sales 185 174
Qperations 1,669 1,572
Finance and administration 208 196

| Total staff numbers 2,062 1,942 |
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? Other Operating Expense

In 2013, the Group amended its long term incentive plan. This amendment enabled U.S. Bancorp to grant certain
employees shares In U.S. Bancorp as a retention incentive. As at 31 December, the charge for these awards in 2018
was EUR 588 thousand (2017: EUR 434 thousand}. As at 31 December 2018, EUR 62 thousand was payable (2017
EUR 36 thousand). The charge for all other long term incentive awards in 2018 was EUR 2,750 thousand (2017: EUR

2,408 thousand).

An element of salaries and wages has been capitalised during the year in relation to the development of software. As
at 31 December 2018, EUR 569 thousand was capitalised (2017: EUR 1,084 thousand). The Group has not capitalised

soclal insurance and other retirement benefits during the year.

; Other Qperating Expenses B
In thousands of Euro Note 2018 2017
Staff Costs
Wages and salaries 121,630 106,181
Socia) security costs 13,203 12,140
Pension costs — defined contribution plans 24 4,849 4,705
Pension costs — defined benefit plans 24 411 448
Staff costs - other 11,977 10,250
Auditor’s Remuneration
Statutory Audit 644 673
Other assurance services 5 5
Other
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 18 15,718 14,304
Amortisation of intangible assets 17 3,606 4,899
Goodwill impairment 16 - 314
Losses from disposals of fixed assets 411 253
Marketing and business development 10,230 9,095
Occupancy and equipment 11,557 12,109
Other operating expenses - Other 12,880 9,451
Bank processing fees* 21,979 28,685
Postage, printing and supplies 2,266 2,237
Professional services 14,748 12,796
Technology and communications 7,946 9,149
Services provided by affiliate companies 18,184 8,289
Total operating expenses 272,244 245,983
Foreign exchange loss 3,095 3,696

| Total other operating expense 275,339 249,679 |
*Bank Processing fees Includes negative interest expense

Directors’ emoluments are analysed as follows:

In thousands of Euro 2018 2017
Remuneration in respect of services as Directar 160 140
Remuneration in connection with management 1,012 944
Remuneration to Directors in respect of other termination payments - 260
Remuneration in respect of other assets received or receivable from long term incentive plans - 266
Pension costs — deflhed contribution plans (other than In respect of services as Director}* 22 179
Total Directors’ emoluments 1,194 1,789

*Pensions costs relate to payments for two Directars,
No payments have been paid to past Directors during the current or prior year.
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8 Income Taxes

| Income Taxes ]
In thousands of Euro Rate 2018 2017
Current Tax
Irish corporation tax
Current year 1,173 4,742
Adjustment in respect of prior year 328 {42)
Forelgn tax
Current year 7,095 6,850
Adjustment in respect of prior year {789) 323
Deferred tax expense 116 217
Income tax expense for the year 7,923 12,090

A reconclliation of tax on profit on ordinary activities at the standard irish corporation tax rate to the Group’s

actual tax charge is as follows:

Profit before tax 43,712 42,735
Theoretical tax charge at statutory rate 12.5% 5,464 5,342
Tax effect of items which are not deductible or assessable for taxation purposes:
(Reversal)/Addition of prior year tax (461) 281
Non-deductible expenses 194 2,903
Total temporary differences not accounted for in deferred tax 348 (283)
Overseas profits taxed at a higher rate 2,450 2,961
Losses recognised - 83
Current year profits taxed at higher rate - 852
Uncertain tax provision - 5,578
Deferred tax on Visa preferred shares - (5,578)
Other adjustments {72) {49)
| Income tax expense for the year 7,923 12,090 |
Deferred tax as included on the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position:
| Deferred Taxes 1
In thousands of Euro 2018 2017
Deferred Tax Liability
Tax effect of taxable temporary differences
Other intangibles: amortlsation {1,405) (1,701)
Financial assets available for sale: unrealised gain on Visa Europe shares . -
Asset timing differences {1,882) (1,644)
Foreign exchange differences 2 13
[ Recognised deferred tax lfabllity {3,285) (3,332 |
in thousands of Euro 2018 2017
Deferred Tax Asset
Tax effect of deductible temporary differences
Asset timing differences 2,467 3,036
Losses In foreign markets - -
Re-measurement of defined benefit plan 837 730
Exchange movements 89 {352}
| Recognised deferred tax asset 3,393 3,414 |
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8 income Taxes (continued)

Underlying profit before tax for the year ended 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 included a gain on sale of
shares in Visa Europe, as discussed in Note 5 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. For the purposes of taxation
this gain was considered trading income in nature subject to Irish corporate tax at the rate of 12.5%. The group
recognises that the Irish tax authorities may challenge this tax treatment at some future point and hence an uncertain
tax pravision was included within the 2017 and 2016 current income tax expense in respect of this uncertain
position. This represents the difference between the taxation of the gain as a trading receipt versus a capital
receipt. At 31 December 2018 the provision held was EUR 40,070 thousand (2017: EUR 40,070 thousand).

9 Cash Balances
The Group Is required to comply with regulatory liquidity requirements under the Capital Requirements Directive

and Regulation, as supported by EBA guidelines and technical standards.

The Group has remained in full compliance and as at 31 December 2018 maintained a buffer significantly higher than
regulatory requirements. The Group has metits high quality liquid asset requirement by placing cash with the Central
Bank of Ireland and the Bank of England.

In addition to Liquidity Coverage Ratia, the Group is also required to place cash with the Central Bank of Ireland, the
National Bank of Poland, and the Bank of England to meet minimum reserve and cash deposit ratio requirements;
as at 31 December 2018 such balances were EUR 90,174 thousand (2017: EUR 76,585 thousand).

As at 31 December 2018 the Group had money market placements of EUR 34,177 thousand (2017: nil) with SEB. The
term of this deposit was from 31 December 2018 to 2 January 2019,

With exception for the Group’s investments with affiliates, all investing or financing transactions during 2018 and
2017 involved the use of cash or cash equivalents,

{"Cash Balances !

- - - |

In thousands of Euro 2018 2017
Cash and cash equivalents

Balances at central banks 6,397,162 8,833,491

Cash and balances with banks 86,939 194,657

Money market placements 34,177 -

Cash with affiliates 11,668 18,063
Total cash with banks and affiliates 6,529,946 9,046,211

Overdrafts (69,112) {11,865}
Total cash and cash equivalents 6,460,834 9,034,346

10 Investments with Affiliates

Investments with affiliates represent fixed term deposits with U.S. Bancorp, which amounted to EUR 104,803
thousand {2017: EUR 288,896 thousand). These deposits are interest bearing short-term deposits which normally
mature within 7 days to 30 days. None of the investments with afflliates were past due or deemed to be impaired.

1 Discontinued Operation
On 23 June 2017, the Group announced that it had entered into a conditional agreement for the divestment of its

stake in Santander Elavon Merchant Services {’SEMS’), a joint venture, through the sale of the Group’s entire
shareholding to Banco Santander, the other shareholder in SEMS.

Total cansideration received from the sale of the joint venture was EUR 72,500 thousand. A termination payment of

ELR 500 thousand was paid to Banco Santander as part of the sale agreement and is included in costs associated
with the sale. Therefore the net consideration received by the Group for the sale was EUR 72,000 thousand.
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11 Discontinued Operation {continued)

Envestment in loint Venture ]
In thousands of Euro 2017
As at 1 January 92,510
Share in profit of Joint Venture 1,407
As at date of disposal/end of year 93,917

The Group’s share in profit of the Joint Venture was accounted for using the equity method and presented as a single

line item in the Consolidated Statement of Income.

Eoss on sale of Joint Venture

|

}
In thousands of Eurc 2017
Consideration received 72,500
Less investment in Joint Venture {92,510}
Less costs associated with sale (1,887)
Loss on the sale of the Joint Venture (21,897)
Share of profits for the year (1,407)

| Result for financial year including loss on the sale (23,304) |

12 Investment in Associate

On 29* March 2018, the Group Invested EUR 2 million in Tillhub GmbH {‘Tillhub’); an established point-of-sale
software solution provider In Germany. This investment represents a 13.5% interest in Tillhub and the Group has
appointed one of four Advisory Board members to the Board of Directors of Tillhub, giving Elavon significant
influence over Tillnub. The Investment is accounted for using the equity method in the Consclidated Financial
Statements, The following table iflustrates the summarised financial information of the investment in Tillhub from

April to December 2018:

1
H
Investment in assoclate

In thousands of Euro 2018
Current Assets {Cash and cash equivalents EUR 2,227 thousand) 2,483
Non-current Assets 25
Current Liabilities (222)
Equity 2,286
Carrying amount of investment 1,797
In thousands of Euro 2018
Revenue from contracts with customers 927
Cost of sales {301)
Other operating income 11
Operating expenses (2,143}
_Non-operating income 4
Loss before tax {1,502)
Income tax expense -
Loss for the year (continuing operations) {1,502)
[ Group’s share of loss for the year {203) |

43




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

13 Merchant Receivables
As at 31 December 2018, the value of receivables from merchants was EUR 79,942 thousand (2017: EUR 62,994

thousand). Merchant receivables are presented net of expected credit losses on the Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position,

14 Recelvables from Issuing Banks
As at 31 December 2018 the value of receivables from Issuing banks was EUR 485,788 thousand {2017: EUR 696,475
thousand). The fair value of collateral held against receivables from issuing banks was nil as at 31 December 2018

{2017: nil}. None of the issuing bank receivables are deemed to be past due or impaired,

15 Investment Services Receivables

| Investment Services Recelvables i
In thousands of Euro 2018 2017
GCTS fee recelvables 12,696 13,548
Recelvables from clearing houses - Clearstream 4 -

| As at 31 December 12,700 13,548 |

Due to the nature of the GCTS business and the structure of the deals in place, It is ensured that the Group will always
be paid before a loan fully redeems.

i6 Goodwill

The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to each CGU or group of CGUs is:
In thousonds of Euro Serv?::s"g;;‘: Corporate T(':’;ﬂ Total Goodwill
Cost
As at 1January 2018 128,679 9 128,688
Exchange rate movements (600} - {600}

| As at 31 December 2018 128,079 9 128,088 ]
Cost
As at 1 January 2017 131,212 10 131,222
Goadwill impairment (314) - (314)
Exchange rate movements (2,219) (1) {2,220}

| As at 31 Dacember 2017 128,679 9 128,688 |

impairment testing of goadwill
There was no impairment of goodwill recognised during the year. In 2017 the Group recognised an impairment {oss

of EUR 314 thousand on the goodwill that was recognised on the acquisition of Hexicom Limited,

The Group's impairment test in respect of goodwill allocated to a CGU or group of CGUs is performed as at 30
September each year. In line with the accounting policy set out in Note 2, goodwill is also retested for impairment
whenever there is an indication that goodwill may be impaired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, the EMS CGU group represents the lowest level at which goadwill is
monitored by key management personnel, EMS CGU group compiises the tatal merchant processing business across
Europe, and is the sole group of CGUs for the purpose of impairment testing for this business line. An additional
impairment test is performed for the GCTS CGU. The basis of the recoverable amount is the value in use for both

business lines.

The value in use Is calculated by discounting management's cash flow projections for 20 years. The discount rate of
11% (2017: 12%) used in the calculation represents the cost of capital that the Group's ultimate parent undertaking
allocates to investments in Europe.
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16 Goodwlll {continued)

A long-term growth rate of 2% {2017: 5%) was used to extrapolate the cash flows. The growth rate is achlevable in
the longer term based on customer initiatives implemented, low attrition levels, and past experience showing that
growth rates of the portfolios have exceeded GDP growth rates. An expense reduction rate was used to reduce the
direct expense by 1% over a five year period to 45% {2017; 38%).

The recoverable amount for goodwill in 2018 is calculated to be over EUR 591,537 thousand (2017: over EUR
1,388,062 thousand). As a result of these figures no impairment of goodwill was recognised in either 2018 or 2017,
other than the impairment loss on Fiexicom Limited in 2017, If any of the inputs were to be reasonably changed, the
recoverable amount will still exceed the carrying amount.

17 intangible Assets — Other
! Intanigible Assets - Other . |
Corporate
In thousands of Euro c: mputer  Merchant r"Trust Total
oftware Contracts
Contracts
Cost
Opening balance 49,235 95,605 2,993 147,833
Additions 2,887 - - 2,887
Amounts written off* {770) - - (770)
Exchange movements {42) (554) (23) {619)
Closing Balance of cost account 51,310 95,051 2,970 149,331
Accumulated amortisation
Opening balance 44,450 86,851 2,946 134,287
Amounts written off* {770) - - (770)
Amortisation charge for the year 2,082 1,481 43 3,606
Exchange movements (35) (502) (43) {580}
Closing Balance of the accumulated amortisation 45,767 87,830 2,946 136,543
.’ Net book value as at 31 December 2018 5,543 7,221 24 12,788 ]
*Relates to assets which are no longer In use with a NiL carrying value
Corporate
in thousands of Euro C: mputer Merchant pTrust Total
oftware Contracts
Contracts
Cost
Opening balance 46,353 98,368 3,102 147,823
Additions 2,840 - - 2,840
Exchange movements 42 {2,763) {105) {2,830}
Closing Balance of cost account 49,235 95,605 2,993 147,833
Accumulated amortisation
Opening balance 41,508 87,495 2,934 131,937
Amortisation charge for the year 2,944 1,779 176 4,899
Exchange mavements 38 {2,423) {164} {2,549)
Closing Balance of the accumulated amortisation 44,450 86,851 2,946 134,287
| Net book value as at 31 December 2017 4,748 8,754 47 13,546 |
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17 Intangible Assets — Other {continued)

Merchant cantracts and corparate trust customer contracts arose from past acquisitions. Management believes that
any reasonable possible changes in key assumptions would not cause the CGU carrying amount to exceed its

recoverable amount.

Impairment testing of other intangible assets

The recoverable amount of the contracts has been determined hased on a value in use calculation (2018 discount
rate 11%) using cash flow projections based on the 2018 actual results approved by senlor management and cash
flows are extrapolated beyond this. It was found that there were no indicators of Impairment of intangibles during

the year 2018; therefore a full impairment review was not carried out for 2018,

18 Property, Plant and Equipment

mopertv, Plant and Equipment

Premises and Office and
In thousands aof Euro leasehold computer Total
improvements equipment
Cost
Opening balance 17,123 105,534 122,657
Additions 3,402 20,002 23,404
Disposals & amounts written off (1,040) {16,925) {17,965)
Exchange movements {58) (851) (909)
Closing Balance of cost account 19,427 107,760 127,187
Accumulated depreciations and write-offs
Opening halance 11,404 66,902 78,306
Disposals & amounts written off {1,013} (11,539) {12,952)
Depreciation charge for the year 1,039 14,679 15,718
Exchange movements (51) (571} {622)
Closing Balance of the accumulated depreciation account 11,379 69,071 80,450
Ilét book value as at 31 December 2018 8,048 38,689 46,73'-7j1
Premises and Office and
In thousonds of Euro leasehold computer Total
Improvements equipment
Cost
Opening balance 16,780 100,296 117,076
Additions 306 21,215 21,521
Disposals & amounts written off - (16,493} (16,493)
Exchange movements 37 516 553
Closing Balance of cost account 17,123 105,534 122,657
Accumulated depreclations and write-offs
Opening balance 10,469 68,329 78,798
Disposals & amounts written off - {15,198} {15,198}
Depreciation charge for the year 893 13,411 14,304
Exchange movements 42 360 402
Closing Balance of the accumulated depreciation account 11,404 66,902 78,306
{ Net book value as at 31 December 2017 5,719 38,632 44,351 |
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19 Other Assets
The following Other Assets are deemed to be current assets.

@her Assets . |
In thousands of Euro Note 2018 2017
Commercial loans — receivable 22,035 19,697
Prepayments, deferred expenses and other receivables 49,687 9,918
Visa Europe deferred consideration receivable 17171 16,511
Tax debtors 98 165
Other assets — other 408 201
Receivables from affiliate companies 6,751 371
Forward exchange contracts 28 272 376
Interest receivable 385 574

| As at 31 December ' 96,807 47,813 |

Forward contracts entered Into by the Group are generally traded in an over-the-counter market with professional
market counterparties on standardised contractual terms and conditions. The contracts are short-term deposits and
the latest date of maturity for the abave contracts is 22 January 2019,

Forward contracts frequently involve a high degree of leverage, and a relatively small movement in a currency
exchange rate may give rise to significant loss. Over-the-counter derivatives may expose the Group to the risks
associated with the absence of an exchange market on which to close out an open position. The use of standardised
contractual terms and conditions by the Group mitigates this risk, The Group has credit exposure to the

counterpartles of forward contracts.

The Group settles jts forward contracts on a net basis and therefore mitigates such liquidity risk. The Group’s
exposure under derivative contracts is closely monitored as part of the overall management of the Group’s market

risk,

The Visa Europe deferred consideration receivable accrues interest at 4% and the full settlement is expected to be

received in June 2019.

[ Forward Exchange Contracts

In thousands of Fure

Notional Amount

Fair Value Assets

Fair Value Liabilities

PLN 107,117 175 -
SEX 17,479 - (74)
AUD 1,260 27 -
Other 26,835 70 {79)

| As at end of 31 December 2018 152,691 272 {153} |
In thousands of Euro Notional Amount | Fair Value Assets | Fair Value Llabilitles
PLN 135,465 - (874)
SEK 18,051 - -
usD 22,366 289 -
AUD 5,166 - (43)
Other 25,820 87 (316)

| As at end of 31 Dacember 2017 206,872 376 (1,233) |
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20 Corporate Trust Depaosits

Erporate Trust Deposits }
In thousands of Euro 2018 2017
Accrued Interest 416 200
Non-Interest bearing deposits 143,972 186,337
Interest bearing deposits 5,485,453 8,130,565

| As at 31 December - ' 5,629,841 8,317,102 |

Corporate trust transactions are long-term in thefr nature. However, the cash in such transaction structures s held
on a short-term basis. Thus, it is deemed that corporate trust deposits could be repayabie within 7 days.

21 Merchant Payables
As at 31 December 2018, the value of merchant payables was EUR 619,250 thousand (2017: EUR 864,341 thousand).

This balances reflects the amount owing to Merchants, from the Group, for transactions processed.

22 Other Liabllities
The following Other Liabilities are deemed to be current liabiiities with the exception of the Pension liability.

[ Other Liabilities , |
In thousands of Eure Note 2018 2017
Accruals 44,663 44,011
Sundry creditors 1,430 1,787
Pension liability 24 8,911 7,664
VAT and other tax creditors 6,968 9,251
Corporate payables 3,646 1,619
Deferred revenue 5,437 4564
Forward exchange contracts 19 153 1,233
Payable to affiliate companles 1,262 1,612
Commerdial loans - payable 1,435 1,563
Other liabilities — other 604 627

{ As at 31 Decemher 74,509 73,931 |

23 Financial Liabilities

', Changes in liabllities arlsing from financing activities |
Payments for Parent

In thousands of Euro Company re-charges for Total
share-based payments

Opening Balance as at 1 January 2018 - .
Cash flows 588 588
Foreign Exchange movement - .

Changes in fair value - .
Other* (588) {588)

I Closing Balance as at 31 December 2018 . - . |
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23 Financial Liabilities {continued)

I Changes In liabilitles arising from financing activities

Payments for Parent

In thousands of Euro Company re-charges for Total
share-bhased payments

Opening Balance as at 1 January 2017 - -
Cash flows 434 434
Foreign Exchange movement - -
Changes in fair vaiue - -

Other* {434) (434)
| Closing Balance as at 31 December 2017 - - “

*The “Other’ row includes a contribution from U.S. Bank National Association which represents the cash settlement
of awards to employees during the year arising from restricted stock units of U.S. Bancorp.

24 Pension Costs

Defined contribution plans

The Group has established defined contribution pension plans on behalf of employees. Under the terms of the main
plan the Group will match contributions paid by employees up to 6% of the contributing employee’s salary,

The pension charge for the year ended 31 December 2018 was EUR 4,849 thousand (2017: EUR 4,705 thousand) of
which EUR 506 thousand was payable at 31 December 2018 {2017: EUR 815 thousand}.

Defined benefit plans
The Group provides employees in the German branch with a defined benefit pensions plan. Defined benefit schemes

are closed to new entrants.

The characteristics of the German defined benefit pension schemes are outlined below based on the actuarial report
prepared on 28 December 2018,

Germany

In Germany there are 2 defined benefit schemes, both of which are closed to new entrants. The schemes are
Occupational Pension schemes categarised as “Direktzusagen” or Direct Pension Commitments. The schemes are
registered in Germany and are subject to the Regulatory Framework in place in Germany including the Social Code
{SGB I}, the Occupational Pensions Act {BetrAVG) and the Insurance Supervision Act {VAG). Occupational Pension
schemes fall outside the supervision of the German Federal Financial Supervisory Authority (BaFin).

Plan A, dated 4 May 1994, comprises a final salary plan that provides a lifelong annuity equal to 0.5% of the final
salary for every year of pensionable service. For portions of the salaries abave the German Social Security
Contribution Ceiling (SSCC), 1.5% of final salary for every year of pensionable service applies.

Plan B, dated 2 January 2003, is a Cash Balance Plan with notional employer contributions amounting to 3% of the
total base salary plus 6% of the base salary above the S5CC. The fixed interest credit of 6% p.a. Is granted Immediately,
taking into account the outstanding years until the age of 60. Most employees of Plan A were previously transferred
to Plan B, replacing the accrued henefits In the former plan with an actuarially equivalent initial credit.

A Board of Trustees has been appointed to administer the plan in Germany. The Board of Trustees Is required to act

in the interest of the plan and all relevant stakeholders In the scheme (active and inactive employees, retirees and
employers). The Board of Trustees are responsible for the investment strategy with regard to the plan assets,
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Risk

The Defined Benefit plans as outlined above typically expose the Group to actuarial risks including; investment risk,
interest rate risk, pension increase risk and salary increase risk.

Investment Risk Is the risk that the value of plan assets may be impacted by market conditions. Investment Risk is
mitigated by a prudent investment strategy which sees the majority of Plan Assets being invested in Money Market
Instruments. Remaining investments are well diversified, such that the failure of any single investment would not
have a material Impact on the overall level of assets.

The interest rate applied is determined in accordance with |1AS 18, Employee Benefits, The standard establishes that
the rate used to discount post-employment benefit obligations shall be determined by reference tc market yields at
the end of the reporting period on high quality corporate bonds.

In countries where there is no deep market for such bonds, the market yields on government bonds shall be used.
The currency and term of the corporate bonds or government bonds shall be consistent with the currency and
estimated term of the post-employment benefit obligations,

Pension increase risk, is the risk of an increase In pensions leading to an increase in obligations. A sensitivity analysis
of the pension increase rate is provided further on in this note.

Salary Increase risk is the risk of an increase in salaries ieading to an increase in obligations. The salary increase rate
risk is mitigated by the remuneration policy of the Group. A sensitivity analysis of the salary increase rate Is provided
further on In this note. Further details of the policies and procedures employed by the Group to manage risks are
outlined in Note 27.

Of the total movement in the pension plan surplus, EUR 411 thousand (2017: EUR 448 thousand) is included In staff
costs In the Consolidated Statement of Income and EUR 856 thousand (2017 EUR (1,533) thousand} is included in
re-measurement of defined benefit plans in the Consolidated Statement of Other Comprehensive Income. The
components of the total mavement are as follows:

[ Pension Benefit .
In thousands of Euro 2018 2017
Components of pension cost
Current service cost 278 318
Net Interest expense 133 130
Components of pension cast recorded in profit or loss 411 448
Return on plan assets, excluding interest 523 (637)
Actuarial (gain)/losses recognised in the year 333 {896)
Components of pension cost recarded in other comprehenslve income 856 {1,533)

[ Total recognised in Comprehensive Income 1,267 {1,085} |
In thousands of Euro 2018 2017
Changes in the fair value of plan assets
Opening balance as at 1 January 7,307 6,696

Interest Income 127 100
Return on plan assets, excluding interest (523) 636
Benefits paid - {5}
Contributions by employer {177} (120)
As at 31 December 6,734 7,307
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24 Pension Costs {continued)
in thousands of Euro 2018 2017
Changes in the present value of plan liabilities
Opening balance as at 1 January 14,971 15,524
Current service cost 278 317
Benefits paid (197) (204)
Interest costs 260 230
Actuarial (galn)/losses during the year* 333 (896)
As at 31 December 15,645 14,971
| Net liabllity arising from defined benefit obligation (8,911) {7,664) |

*See the Actuarial Losses/(Gains) on defined benefit abligations table at the bottom of this page.

Plan assets in Germany have 2 quoted market price in an active market. They are held in the form of units of money
market, debt and equity funds managed by DWS Investments, {the U.S. retall brand of Deutsche Bank's global asset
management division). Those diversifled funds invest in a wide range of underlyling instruments across different

economic sectors.

The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are:

| Plan Assets - ] 2018 2017 |
Equity instruments {Geographic location Eurcpe; 2018: 100%, 2017: 100%) 52% 55%
Debt instruments {Geographic location Europe; 2018: 100%, 2017: 100%) 45% 45%
Money market instruments (Geographic location Europe; 2018: 1003, 2017: 100%) 1% -
Other {Geographic location Europe; 2018: 100%, 2017: 100%) 1% -

| As at 31 December ] i 100% 100% |

| Principal Assumptions In Determining Pension Obligations 2018 2017 |
Discount rate 1.75% 1.75%
Rate of salary Increase 3.0% 3.0%
Rate of pensfon increase 2.0% 2.0%
Retirement Age: Men 63 63
Retirement Age: Women 60/63 60/63
N Huebeck Huebeck
ngt:ll:llltl:,t\,l E;sba: lrlﬂlriied Richttafeln Richttafeln
2018G 2005G
Principal Assumptions in Determining Pension opllgaticms Women Men Women Men
Staff Turnover Rates ' 2018 2018 2017 2017

Age

20-25 10% 6% 10% 6%
26-30 7% 5% 7% 5%
31-35 5% 4% 5% 4%
36-40 3% 3% 3% 3%
41-45 3% 2% 3% 2%
46 -50 2% 2% 2% 2%
51-55 1% 1% 1% 1%
Qver 55 0% 0% 0% 0%

| Actuarial Losses/{Galns) on defined benefit obligations |
in thousands of Euro 2018 2017
From changes in demographic assumptions 176 -
From changes In financial assumptions - {710)
From experience adjustments 157 {186)
As at 31 December 333 (896)

&1




Notes to the Consclidated Financial Statements

24 Pension Costs (continued)
The use of assumptions In calculating the Defined Benefit Obligation (‘DBO’) gives rise to uncertainty with regards to

the amount and timing of future cash flows.

The below sensitivity analysis illustrates how the DBO would be affected by a reasonably possible change in each of
the principal assumptions, If all other assumptions remained unchanged. The degree of variation of the assumptions
was determined by the Actuaries following analysis of historical data and represents a reasonably possible change
to each of the assumptions within the duration of 1 year.

| Sensitivity analysls 2018 2017 |
Sensitlvity of the discount rate
A 100 point increase of the discount rate would decrease the DBO by (15.85%) (15.85%)
A 100 point decrease of the discount rate would increase the DBO by 19.91% 20.75%
Sensitivity of the salary Increase rate
A 50 point increase of the salary increase rate would increase the DBO by 0.11% 0.12%
A 50 point decrease of the salary increase rate would decrease the DBO by (0.10%) {0.11%)
Sensitivity of the pension increase rate
A 25 point increase of the pension increase rate would increase the DBO by 2.13% 2.38%
A 25 point decrease of the pension increase rate would decrease the DBO by (2.24%) {2.12%)

EFS DAC and its subsidiaries fund the cost of the entitiements expected to be earned on a yearly basis. Employees
pay a fixed 6% of pensionable salary. The residual contribution {including back service payments) is paid by the
entities of the Group. The funding requirements are based on the local actuarial measurement framewark. In this
framework the discount rate is set on a risk free rate. Furthermore, premiums are determined on a current salary
base. Additional liabilities stemming from past service due to salary Increases (back-service liabilities} are paid
immediately to the Fund. Apart from paying the costs of the entitlements, the Group’s subsidiaries are not liable to
pay additional contributions in case the Fund does not hold sufficient assets. In that case, the Fund would take other
measures to restore its salvency, such as a reduction of the entitlements of the plan members,

The average duration of the benefit obligation at 31 December 2018 is 25.5 years (2017: 19.3 years}. This humber
can be analysed as follows:

. Active members 35 years {2017: 39.7 years}
. Deferred members 34.9 years (2017: 35.3 years); and
. Retired members 18 years {2017: 21.6 years)

The Group expects to make a contribution of EUR 289 thousand to the defined benefit plans during the next financial
year.

The actuarial valuations are available for inspection by members but are not available for public inspection.

25 Share Capital

1

mare Capital ‘ ‘ i
In thousands of Eure 2018 2017
Ordinary Share Capital - Authorised
1,000,000,000 ordinary shares of €1 each (2017: 1,000,000,000) 1,000,000 1,000,000
Allotted, called up and fully paid
6,400,001 ordinary shares of €1 each (2017: 6,400,001) 6,400 6,400

There were no movements in the authorised or issued share capital during the year or during the preceding year,
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26 Capital Contribution

Capital contributions relate to amounts invested In Elavon Financial Services DAC by U.S. Bancorp {via s subsidiary
U.5. Bank National Association) that are non-refundable and for which nelther U.S. Bancorp nor U.S. Bank National
Association recelves shares. The total capital contributions as at 31 December 2018 were EUR 589,389 thousand

(2017: EUR 589,389 thousand).

The Group recognised a credit in equity, as a contribution from U.S. Bank National Association of EUR 588 thousand
(2017: EUR 434 thousand) which represented the cash settlement of awards to employees during the year arising
from rastricted stock units of U.S. Bancorp.

27 Risk Management

The Group has defined internal governance arrangements, which include an organisational structure with defined
lines of responsibility; a Risk Management Framework designed to identify, measure, control, monitor and report
the risks to which it is or might be exposed; an Internal Controls Framework designed to support adequate internal
control mechanisms; and a Remuneration Policy and practices that are consistent with and promote sound and
effective risk management. A Three Lines of Defence Model Is in operation across the Group.

1st Line of Defence: Business Operations

s  The first line of defence encompasses business lines which manage risks in conformity with established
limits and policy requirements. In turn, business leaders and their risk officers establish programmes to
ensure conformity with these limits and policy requirements.

2nd Line of Defence: Oversight & Challenge

« The second line of defence includes the Chief Risk Officer’s organisation. The second line of defence
manitors first line of defence conformity with limits and policies and provides reporting and escalation of
emerging risks and other concerns to senfor management of EFS and the Board Risk Committee.

3rd Line of Defence: Independent Review

s Group Internal Audit {Corporate Audit Services, “CAS”), as the third line of defence provides an independent
review of the first two lines of defence, primarily focusing on control weaknesses and vulnerabilities.

The Board of Directors

The Board of Directors, (‘the Board'), has overall responsibility for the Group. In particular, the Board is responsible
for the ethical oversight of the Group, setting the business strategy for the Group, ensuring that risks are properly
identified and managed and that the Group operates in compliance with regulatory and legislative requirements.

The Board delegates autherity for the ongoing management and oversight of existing policies to management
through the Board Risk Committee (“BRC"), Executive Risk Committee {"ERC"} and designated Senior Operating
Committees (*SOCs”) within the Bank’s Governance Structure. The governance structure Includes the following
Committees:

Board
| |
Board Remuneration
Board Risk Committee Board Audit Committee Committee
Senlor Opemating Committees I
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Board Risk Committee

The Board Risk Committee has been delegated autherity by the Board to provide oversight and advice to the Board
on the current risk exposure of the Group and future risk strategy. Additionally, the Committee has been delegated
responsibility by the Board to oversee the Group’s Risk Management Framework. The Committee is responsible for
monitoring all aspects of risk associated with the operations of the Group.

Board Audit Committee

The Board Audit Committee has been delegated authority to provide assistance to the Board in fulfilling its
responsibility to the shareholders with respect to its oversight of the financial reporting process and the quality and
integrity of the Group’s financial statements; the Group’s internal controls and compliance with tegal and regulatory
requirements; the statutory audit of the annual and consolidated accounts; the independence of the Group’s auditor,
and the provisian of additional services to the Group; and the effectiveness of the Group’s Internal Audit function.

Board Remuneration Committee

The Board Remuneration Committee has been delegated authority by the Board to oversee the Group’s
Remuneration Policy and practices, as well as considering senior management remuneration and, if required, making
recommendations to the Board in respect of the remuneration arrangements of the Executive Directors of the Group.

Senlor Operating Committees
The Board has established a number of management committees, as follows:
¢ Managing Committee, which has primary responsibility for proposing the direction of the Group to the
Board, and ensuring the effective implementation of the Board's strategy, risk appetite, policies and other
guidance;
¢ ERC, which has been delegated responsibility from the Board Risk Committee to provide executive oversight
of the enterprise risk framework. The ERC helps the Group grow profitably In & safe and sound manner,
whife promoting an effective risk management culture throughout the organisation and is supported in this
activity by the fallowing committees:

o Information Technology Governance Committee ('ITGC’), which has primary responsibility for the
oversight and governance of Information Technology risk management within the Group;

o Data Governance Committee, a sub-committee of ITGC, which has primary responsibility for
ensuring consistent, high-quality data Is available across the Group;

o Asset & Liability Management Committee {'ALMC'), which has primary responsihility for the
implementation of the Board’s asset and liability management strategles and policies as well as
primary responsibility for ensuring the implementation of the Group’s Interna! Liquidity Adequacy
Assessment Process {'ILAAP');

o Compliance & Operational Risk Committee acts as the primary management level committee
dedicated to compliance and operational risk for the Group, providing direction regarding the
management of compliance and operational risk to business lines and to the risk management
programs, discussing compliance and operational risk and loss events across the Group, exploring
mitigation strategles, and sharing institutional knowledge.

o Credit Management Committee, which has primary responsibility for the implementation of the
Board's credit risk policies;

o Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (1CAAP’} Commlttee, which has primary
responsibility for ensuring the effective implementation of the Group’s ICAAP;

o  Fraud Committee, which has primary responsibility for promoting a unifled, coordinated and
collaborative approach to Fraud Risk Management across the Group;

o Macro Risk Committee, which has primary responsibility to perform duties and provide specialist
technical advice in relation to the potential impacts on the Group as a result of key macro variables
affecting corpeorate performance in the EU and the wider European area;

o Regulatory Reporting Oversight Committee, which oversees compliance with the Group’s internal
controls and precedures to fulfil its responsibility for the accuracy and timeliness of the Group’s
required regulatory financial reporting; and
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o Conduct Risk Committee, is the primary Committee for overseeing Conduct Risk within the Bank.

The Committee provides direction and oversight of the Group's activities that impact the delivery
of fair autcomes for Customers.

Approach to Managing Risk

Risk Cycle
The Group manages the risks to which it is exposed to through the risk cycle:
s Identify Ensuring the risk inherent in all material products, activities, processes and systems is
identified to make sure they are well understood.
*  Assess Understanding the Group’s risk profile and aliocating risk management resources and
strategies most effectively.
s  Control Activities undertaken to ensure adherence ta the risk appetite and strategy, as well as
individual policies and limits established by the Group.
+  Monitor Regular monitoring of the Group’s risk profile and material exposures to losses and the
& report communication of this to relevant parties.
Risk Framework Integration
Risk Appetite

The Board has developed a documented risk appetite, which is expressed in both qualitative terms and quantitative
metrics. The Group's risk culture is based on the risks the Group faces and how they are managed, taking into
account its risk appetite. The Board ensures the Risk Management Framework and Internal Controls Framework
reflect the risk appetite and that there are adequate arrangements in place to ensure that there is regular reporting

to the Board on risk appetite.

Risk Management & Strategy
The Group’s approach to risk management has been developed to provide an environment that supports the

achlevement of strategy in a sustainable way. This is achieved through aligning risk limits and controls to strategy,
through direct alignment to the Board’s risk appetite.

Risk & Campiiance Function
The Risk & Compliance Function {"RCF’} helps the Group accomplish its objectives by ensuring that each key risk the

Group faces is identified and properly managed.

The RCF is divided into six key disciplines: Operational Risk, Enterprise Risk, Compliance, Credit, Anti-Money
Laundering, Regulatory Services and Data Governance.
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The RCF supports the Board {and sub-Committees thereof) in managing risk across the Group through providing a
holistic view of all relevant risks. The RCF enables business unlts and support functions to effectively manage the
risks their activities give rise to, The RCF is independent of the buslness and support units whose risks it controls.
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Oﬁlcer Officer

Geographical Risk
The Group's EMS activities are diversified throughout various countries in Europe, all of which are considered to be
developed and none of which currently experiences hyper-inflationary conditions

The geographlical market concentrations by branch booking location of GCTS, receivables from issuing banks and
EMS receivables are noted below:

| Geographical Risk ) E f
Corporate Trust 2018 2017
United Kingdom 100% 100%

| Total _ 100% 100% |
Receivables from Issuing Banks 2018 2017
Ireland 7% 11%
United Kingdom 40% 59%
Poland 26% 17%
Norway 23% 9%
Germany 4% 4%

[ Total 100% 100% |
Merchant Recelvables 2018 2017
Ireland 29% 35%
United Kingdom 52% 52%
Poland 6% 7%
Norway 8% 3%
Germany 5% 3%

| Total 100% 100% |

Credit Risk

Credit Risk is the risk of loss resulting from a counterparty or obligor being unable to meet contractual obligatians
agreed with the Group in respect of financial transactions. Credit risk arises both on an on-balance sheet and off-
balance sheet exposure basls. On-balance sheet credit risk primarily relates to exposures to Card Issuing Banks,
Corporate Payment Systems card facilities and Banks that the Group has deposited cash with. Off-balance sheet
credit risk primarily relates to the contingent risks attached to Merchant Processing.
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The Board-approved Risk Appetite Statement and associated policies set out risk tolerance and parameters for
exposures to a customer or a group of connected customers. The core values and principles governing the
management of credit risk are contafned in the Group's credit policies.

Exposure to credit risk is managed at origination and through-the-cycle by analysis and regular review of
counterparty’s ability to meet its obligations to the Group; the criterion for acceptable underwriting is set out in the
relevant Credit Risk policies. Additionally, the Group obtain collateral and guarantees from customers where
appropriate to reduce and manage credit risk. Delayed settlement is also utilised as a tool for mitigating chargeback
risk for some customers.

Monitoring of credit risk is enabled through exposure monitoring and current business and financial information to
support the credit risk management of individual exposures in addition to portfolio level management. Credit risk
oversight reporting is provided to senior management through the Credit Management Committee.

Concentration risk is managed and monitored as part of the EFS Risk Appetite Statement. For Credit Risk there are
several credit risk exposure groupings identified and monitored against the Group Risk Appetite.

Credit Ratings |
Counterparty Moody's 5&P Fitch
U.s. Bank National Assoclation Al AA- AA-
Deutsche Bank A3 BBB+ A+
Skandinaviska Enskilda Banken AB Aa2 A+ AA-

Expected Credit Loss

The Group utilises a range of Expected Credit Loss {ECL) models which are specific to the characteristics and
behaviours displayed withln each of EFS" credit portfolios. An overview of the methodology behind each portfolio
ECL approach is outlined as follows:

*  Elavon Merchant Services (EMS} Portfolio
o For the EMS exposures, risk becomes inherent when the merchant is unwilling or unable to reimburse

the Group for services provided and chargebacks, which then begin to age in the collections database.
These aging receivables and chargebacks are written off in the month they reach 90 days past due.
Therefore, at any given point in time, the lifetime of Inherent risk equates to three months.
o Aloss-rate approach has been utilised to generate the ECL estimate. This methodology is appropriate
glven the customer behavioural patterns within the underlying portfolio.
o The loss rate is determined at the full portfolio level and allocated to the IFRS 9 stages according to the
delinquency status.
®  The vast majority of the ECL will be allocated to Stage 1; and
»  The Stage 3 allocation will be zero.
o Once the loss rate is determined, it is applied to the delinquent balances to calculate the lifetime loss.
This determines the forward-looking, on balance sheet provision required to manage the inherent risk.
o Asaresult of the above 90 Day write off policy within EMS, a loss of EUR 5,388 thousand was recognised
in 2018 as part of net fee and commission income (Note 3].

» Corporate Payment Systems {CPS) Portfolic

o CPS fadlities require full payment every billing cycle. Balances do not revolve and charge-off accurs
when the account begins the month at 150 days past due.

o The ECL for the CPS portfolio is formed from a rolf-rate forecast. The model projects a portfolio
distribution acrass a range of five delinquency buckets.

o The roll-rates are conservative In terms of how they measure migration. The approach assumes all
amounts within each bucket have deteriorated from the higher risk bucket in the preceding month.

o The CPSloss forecast methodology considers 12 months of forecasted losses. This forecast is compared
against the historical average to inform the final ECL amaunt for the CPS portfolio.
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¢  Global Corporate Trust Services (GCTS) Portfolio
o Toestimate the ECL for investment service fee receivables, a provision matrix has been developed. The
provision matrix is constructed be examining a series of default rates across the delinquency risk
buckets. The provision matrix will be updated quarterly te adjust for current actual losses.
o The provision matrix uses default rates calculated by aging bucket, applied to current grass carrying
amounts, to determine a guantitative expected loss.
o GCTS receivables are written off in the month the become 365 days past due.

The Group’s ECL methodologies Include 2 qualitative management overlay - which is undertaken post-quantitative
model/calculation output ~ that seeks to make prudent adjustments regarding:
s changes in economic scenarios to estimate a refined forward-looking ECL adjustment; and
« portiolio specific provisions that are not captured within the roll-rate methodology or coirelate ta
macroeconomics factors I.e. management judgement overlay

The qualitative overlay is typically calculated and re-assessed on a quarterly basis. The qualitative macroeconomic
review Is designed to provide an outlack an the economic environtments which the Group is exposed to. Three key
economic varlables have been established to inform potential forward economic environment changes. These
economlc indicators have been determined to be the most appropriate given the nature and level of complexity in
the portfolio:

s Gross Domestic Product;

¢  Unemployment; and

*  Three month Euribor rate.

The definition of default is also eritical to the calculation of expected credit losses, as probability of defauit, exposure
at default and lass given default are three of the key variables In the calculation pracess. At each reporting date the
Group needs to assess whether the credit risk associated with 2 financial instrument has increased significantly since
Tnitial recognition. To do this, the Group uses the change in the risk of default occurring over the expected life of the
financial instrument, rather than the changes in the size of the loss if the default were to accur.

The Group’s Credit Policy classifies a borrower/obligor in default if any one of the following events accur:
* any exposure to the borrower/obligor is partially or completely written down or charged-off;
*  any exposure to the borrower/obligor is placed on non-accrual; or
e any exposure to the borrower/obligor is greater than 90 days past due,

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the Group’s Merchant receivables, Commercial
toan receivables and Investment services receivables. The movement in the year relates to the adoption of a new
model of assessing expected Credit Losses.

Expected Credit Losses !
Merchant Commercial loans Investment
In thousands of Euro .
recelvables recefvables services raceivables
Expected Credit Loss as at 1 January 2018 940 23 4
{Decrease)/Increase in current year {329) 28 17
| Expected Credit Loss as at 31 December 2018 611 ‘ 56 2 |

Market Risk

Market risk is defined as the current or prospective risk to earnings and capitat arising from adverse movements in
interest rates, foreign currency exchange, credit spreads, equity prices and risk related factors such as market
volatilities. The Group's primary exposures to market risks are foreign exchange and interest rate risk. The Board
sets limits on the vaiue of risk that may be accepted.
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Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group takes on exposure to effects of fluctuations in the prevalling foreign currency exchange rates on its
financial position and cash flows. The Board sets limits on the level of exposure which are monitored daily, The ALMC
has responsibillty for monitoring compliance with the asset and liability management policles, including foreign
exchange exposures,

The table below is a sensitivity analysls which demonstrates the effects of paotential 5% adverse movements in
exchange rates of the given currencies versus the Euro. The mitigating effects of the forward contracts outstanding
at year end are Included in the analysis. Intergroup balances, although netted on a Group level, have an impact on
the analysis and are therefore also included.

| Forelgn Exchange Risk
2018 2017
In thousands of Euro Statement E:I?:‘: Statement E:gljt.:
of Incame of Income
GBP 1,271 9,918 383 9,038
NOK (60} 621 (86} 420
PLN 55 1,551 28 1,526
usD 143 - 56 -
{ Total 1,409 12,090 381 10,984 |

Interest Rate Risk
To minimise the volatility of net interest income and the market value of assets and liabilities, the Group monitors
its exposure ta changes in interest rates through asset and llability management activities within the guldelines

established by the ALMC and approved by the Board.

The ALMC has responsibility for monitoring compliance with the asset and liability management policies, including
interest risk exposure. The Group uses net interest income simulation and market value risk analysls for measuring

and analysing Interest rate risk.

The table below is 2 sensitivity analysis which demonstrates the effects of potential 10bps positive/adverse
movements in Interest rates, for the Group:

ILlnterest Rate Risk - :

2018 Statement | 2017 Statement of
In thousands of Eura

of income income
+10bps -10bps +10bps  -10bps
Interest from central banks 6,588 (6,588} 2,721*  [3,553)
Interest from other banks 125 {125) 209 {209)
Interest income from affiliate companies on fixed term depaosits 120 {120} 1,077*  (2,154)
Interest expense on overdraft (34) 34 (44) 44
Interest expense - corporate trust deposits (5,493} 5,157 | (3,297)** 1,437**

| Tetal 1,306 (1,642) 666  {4,435) |

* Note: Due to the current negative interest rate environment In the Eurozone, it is unlikely the full impact of a 10bps
rmovement would arise for our Central Bank and Affiiiate balances, and we have thus utilised a Shps positive
movement for these categories.

** Note: Due to certain contractual conditions within our Corporate Trust Deposits, it is unlikely that the full impact
of a 10bps movement would arise and we have thus utilised a 5bps positive/adverse movement for this category.
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Operational risk

The Group defines operational risk as the risk of loss resulting from Inadequate or faited internal processes, people
and systems or from external events. The Group manages operatienal risk through its Risk Management Framework
and Internal Contral Framework, and supparting procedures, policies and processes. Management have direct and
primary responsibility and accountabllity for identifying, assessing, controlling, and monitoring operational risks
embedded in thelr business actfvities.

The Group maintains a system of controls with the objective of providing proper transaction authorisation and
execution, safeguarding of assets from misuse or theft, and ensuring the reliability of financial and other data.
Management are responsible for ensuring that the controls are appropriate and are implemented as designed.

Anti-Money Laundering (AML) Risk

AML risk is the risk arising from failure to have adequate arrangements in place to prevent, detect or report actual
or attempted instances of money laundering or terrorist financing. AML risk also includes the risks arising from non-
compliance with financial sanctions requirements. The Group manages AML risk through its AML Framework,

including through its AML policies and supporting procedures and controls.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity Is defined as the Group’s ability to maintain cash flows sufficlent to meet funding requirements of ongoing
operations such as decreases in business generated float and in other liabllitles or increases in other assets, in a
timely and cost-effective manner. Maintaining adequate levels of liquidity Is essential for the Group to meet hoth
expected and unexpected changes in the Statement of Financial Position as well as provide sufficient funds for future
growth in the Group's Consolidated Statement of Financlal Position.

Liquidity risk is managed by the ALMC of the Group. Llquidity risk is managed on a daily basis, with monthly, quarterly
and annual stress testing performed on the Group’s liquidity position. The Group has a Contingency Funding Plan
and liguidity risk is mitigated by the significant net liquidity position of the Group.

| Assets by their contractual undlscounted cash flows ' 1

Demand and From 1 to From 6 Over 12
In thousands of Euro less than 1 to12 Total
month 6 months months months
Balances at central banks 6,397,162 - - - 6,397,162
Due from banks 132,784 - - - 132,784
Investments with affiliates 104,803 - - - 104,803
Receivables from Issuing banks 482,096 46 - 3,646 485,788
Merchant receivables 4,416 2,841 - 72,685 79,942
Investment services receivables 5,864 57 2,206 4573 12,700
Other assets 4,153 3,050 - 39,412 46,615
, As at 31 December 2018 7,131,278 5,994 2,206 120316 7,259,794 |
Demand and From 6
In thousands of Euro less than 1 r;rom 1to to12 Over 12 Total
month months months months
Balances at central banks 8,833,491 - - - 8,833,491
Due from banks 212,720 - - - 212,720
Investments with affillates 288,896 - - - 288,896
Receivables from issuing banks 693,960 31 - 2,484 696,475
Merchant receivables 2,937 1119 - 58,938 62,994
Investment services receivables 5,496 74 2,048 5,930 13,548
Other assets 1,700 398 - 35,431 37,529
| As at 31 December 2017 10,039,200 1,622 2,048 102,783 10,145,653 ;
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27

Risk Management {continued)

Elabllltles by their contractual undiscounted cash flows

Demand and
In thousands of Euro less than 1 Fro':;:::hg 1;":::(:': ?n\c’:er:t:\z Total
month
Overdrafts 69,112 - - - 69,112
Merchant payables 594,823 24,303 - 124 619,250
Corporate Trust deposits 5,629,841 - - - 5,629,841
Other liabilities 2,746 105 - - 2,851
| As at 31 December 2018 6,296,522 24,408 - 124 6,321,054 |
Demand and
In thousands of Euro less than 1 From 110 6 From 6 to Over 12 Total
month months 12 manths months
Overdrafts 11,865 - - - 11,865
Merchant payables 830,071 34,115 - 155 864,341
Corporate Trust deposits 8,317,102 - - - 82317,102
Other liabilities 4324 80 - 5 4,409
I[ As at 31 December 2017 9,163,362 34,195 - 160 9,197,717 1‘

28

Fair Value Hierarchy of Financial Assets and Liabilities

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financlal instruments by

valuation technique:

e Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabll(ties.
s level 2: other tachniques for which all inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are

observable, either directly or indirectly.
s Level 3: techniques which use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not

based on observable market data.

Set out below is a comparison by class, of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Group's financial instruments.

The carrying amount of all the Group's financial Instruments not measured at fair value, approximate to thelr fair

value due to their short term nature.

{ Falr Value Hlerarchy t
levell Level 1 Level 2 Level 2 Level 3 Level 3
In thousands of Eurc Fair Carrying Fair Carrying Fair Carrying
Value Amount Value Amount Value Amount
FInancial Assets
Foreign exchange forward contracts - - 272 272 - -
[ As at 31 December 2018 - - 272 272 - -]
Financial Liabilitles
Foreign exchange forward contracts - - (153) (153) - -
| As at 31 December 2018 - - {153) (153) . -
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28 Fair Value Hierarchy of Financial Assets and Liabilities {continued)
Level 1 Level 1 Level 2 Level 2 Level3 Level3
In thousands of Euro Fair Carrying Fair Carrying Falr Carrying
Value Amount Value  Amount Value Amount
Financial Assets
Foreign exchange forward contracts - - 376 376 - -
| As at 31 December 2017 - - 376 376 - -

Financial Liabilities
Foreign exchange forward contracts - - (1,233) {1,233) - -
| As at 31 December 2017 ) - - {1,233) _ {1,233) - .

Foreign Exchange Forward Contracts

The valuation technique used for forward contracts is based on active market rates, which are foreign exchange spot
and forward rates. As the foreign exchange trades are undertaken with the Group’s ultimate parent, U.S. Bancorp,
the rate agreed is verified and matched against the daily prevailing rate available on the market. The daily gain or
loss on the foreign exchange contracts Is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of income.

Other Assets and Liabilities Held at Fair Value
Other assets and liabilities held at fair value by the Group, outside the scope of IFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement,

include share based payments and pension plan assets.

25 Provisions

Legal praceedings

Fram time to time and in the normal course of business, claims are made against the Group. Legal provisions consist
of both litigatien and claim costs, arising from the ordinary course of business. As at 31 December 2018 there is no

provision for legal proceedings (2017: nil).

Merchant processing — charge-backs

The Group provides merchant processing services. Under the rules of credit card associations, a merchant processor
retains a contingent liability for credit card transactions processed. This contingent liability arises in the event of a
claim arising between the parties to a transaction that is ultimately resolved in the cardholder’s favour and for which

no defence to liability under the card scheme rules applies.

In this situation, the transaction is “charged back” to the merchant's account and the disputed amount is credited or
otherwise refunded to the cardholder by the issuing bank. If the Group is unable to collect this amount from the
merchant, it bears the loss for the amount claimed by the issuing bank.

A cardholder, under the card scheme rules, generally has until the later of up to four months after the date the
transaction is processed or the receipt of the product or service to present a charge-back claim. Pursuant to one of
the various calculations used to assess such contingencles, the Group’s absolute maximum potential liability is
estimated to be the total volume of credit card transactions that meet the associations’ requirements to be valid
charge-back transactions at any given time. If this methodology were to be used management estimates that the
maximum potential exposure for charge-backs would approximate the total amount of merchant transactions
procassed through the credit card asscciations for the last four months. This amount totalled approximately EUR
12.0 billion (2017: EUR 11.1 billion).

In most cases, this contingent liabillty is uniikely to arise, as most products and services are delivered when purchased
and amounts are refunded when items are returned to merchants. However, where the product or service has been
purchased but is not provided until a future date {(“future delivery”), the potential for this contingent liabllity
increases.
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29 Provisions {continued)
To mitigate this risk, the Group may require the merchant to make an escrow deposit, plate maximum volume

limitations on future delivery transactions processed by the merchant at any point in time, or require various credit
enhancements {including letters of credit and bank guarantees). Also, merchant processing contracts may include
event triggers to provide the Group more financial and operational control in the event of financial deterioration of

the merchant.

In the event a merchant was unable to fulfil product or services subject to future delivery, such as airline tickets, and
other card scheme rule provisions are fulfilled, the Group could become financially liable under the charge-back
provisions contalned In the card scheme rules. Charge-back risk related to these merchants can be evaluated in a
manner similar to credit risk assessments and, utilising a similar mode of assessment for the Group, merchant
processing contracts contain various provisions to protect the Group in the event of default. As at 31 December
2018, the value of airiine tickets purchased to be delivered at a future date was EUR 2.3 billion {2017: EUR 2.3 Billion).
The Group has received a guarantee from U.S. Bank for this airline exposure. No liability is expected to arise.

In the normal course of business, the Group has unresolved charge-hacks. The Group assesses the likelihood of its
potential liability based on the extent and nature of unresolved charge-backs and its historical loss experience. As at
31 Decermber 2018, the Group held EUR 142.9 million (2017: EUR 49,5 million) of merchant escrow deposits and a
recorded provision for patential losses of EUR 195 thousand (2017: EUR 774 thousand).

Merchant processing ~ Expected credit loss
Expected credit losses are presented net within merchant receivables on the Consolidated Statement of Financial
Position. Please see details in Note 27 (pages 57 & 58) for additional information on expected credit losses.

Asset Retirement Obligation {ARO)

As part of its various business operations throughout Europe the Group has entered into various leasehold
agreements with landiords in respect of the office buildings used by its employees. These leasehold agreements will
include the various standard clauses. One such clause includes a regulrement for the tenant to make good any
changes made to the property during the period of the lease (known either as "dilapidations’ or ‘leasehold

restorations’).

A dilapidations claim is the overall process associated with an allegation of a breach of the clause under the lease in
relation to the condition of the premises. The claim usually occurs at the end of a lease term but in some cases can
occur during the lease term. It has been determined that each building needs to be considered on its own merits, as
to what warks will be required. To this end, the Group’s Real Estate & Facilities Manager (a member of the Royal
Institution of Chartered Surveyors) has been In discussion with a reputable third party firm to ascertain guide costs
for the leasehold partfolio taking into account the location of the buildings and simiiar dilapidations expenses In
those locations.

Remediation Provision
A remediation provision was put in place as at 31 December 2018 to reflect potential losses as a result of a review

into biended/unbiended transaction charges to Merchants.

Corporate Card Provision

Corporate card facilities require full payment every billing cycle. Balances do not revolve and charge-off occurs when
the account begins the month at 150 days past due. Balances are expected to be received after charge off occurs,
however a provision is recorded for these expected losses in the event that they are not recovered. This provision
was wound down on 1 January 2018 and replaced by IFRS 9 ECL.

l Provisions

Asset Corporate Finance

In thousands of Euro Chargeback Retlrament Remediation Card Lease Total
Provision Provision
Obligation Provision Provision
Opening provision 378 2,450 - 24 - 2,852
Charges for the period (4,104) - - (24) - {4,128)
Increase in current year provision 3,922 501 2,832 - - 7,255
[ As at 31, Dacember 2018 196 2,951 2,832 - - 5579 |
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23 Provisions {continued)
Asset Corporate Finance
In thousands of Euro Chargeback Retirement Remediation Card Lease Total
Provision Provision
Ghligation Provision  Provision
Opening provision 1,109 2,274 - - 59 3,442
Charges for the period {2,319) - - (7 {59) (2,385}
Increase In current year provision 1,588 176 - 31 - 1,795
| As at 31 December 2017 378 2,450 - 24, - 2852

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessee

The Group has an aperating lease in respect of Building 8, Cherrywood Business Park, Loughlinstown, D18 W319. The
Group also has operating leases in respect of certain premises, office and computer equipment and motor vehicles in
Belgium, Ireland, UX, Germany, Poland, Spain and Norway, Future minimum rentals payable under non-cancellable
operating leases as at 31 December are as follows:

fNon-cancellable operating leases }

In thousands of Eurg 2018 2017
Within one year 6,452 5,755
After one year but not more than five years 16,057 10,554
More than five years 8,781 6,344

[ Totat i 31,290 22,653 |

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor
The Group has entered into point-of-sale terminal equipment leases. All terminal equipment leases are classified as

operating leases.

Contracts for operating leases in Germany are non-cancellable and have remaining terms of between 1 and 75
months, Contracts in Poland are for 1 year and are automatically renewed if not cancelled at the end of the period
- there fs a notification period and cancellation charge specified in the agreement.

In the UK and Ireland there is no specific period other than that signed into by the merchant on the processing
agreement — therefore these contracts are not included in minimum rentals receivable under non-cancellable leases.
Clauses exist to change rentals, Future minimum rentals receivable under non-cancellable contracts have been

assessed as not material.

30 Immediate and Ultimate Parent Undertaking
The Group’s Immediate Parent undertaking is Elavon European Holdings B.V., a company incorporated in the

Netherlands with a registered office at Rapenburgerstraat, 175/0, 1011 Amsterdam.
The Group's ultimate Parent undertaking is U.S. Bancorp, a company incorporated in Delaware, U.5.A.

The Group’s immediate controlling party is Elavon European Holdings B.V. The Group’s ultimate controlling party is U.5.
Bancorp,

The Parent undertaking of the smallest and largest group of undertakings for which Group Financial Statements are
drawn up, and of which the Group is a member, is U.S. Bancorp, a company Incorporated In Delaware, U.5.A. Copies of
fts Group Financial Statements are availahle from that ultimate Parent’s web site at usbank.com or by mail from the
ultimate Parent’s investor relations department.
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L

3 . ndertalngs 7

Subsidiary name [ U.s. Bank Trustees |  USB Nominees EuroConex EFS Depositary
Y Limited {U.K.) Limited | Technologies Limited Nominees Limited
1250dbroad | 1250kdBroad | (o GEEES | SO e
Registered office Street, London Street, London yw . yw
EC2N 280 EC2N 28Q Park, Loughlinstown, and Tech. Park,
D18 W319 | loughlinstown, Dublin
. Corporate Trust Corporate Trust . .
Principal activity Services Services Currently no activity | Currently no activity
Share Capital 250,600 100 481,467 12,000,000
Nominal value GBP 1 GBP 1 EUR1 EUR1
Type of shares Ordinary Shares |  Ordinary Shares Ordinary Shares Ordinary Shares
Shareholder 250,000 100 48,146,734 1,244,269
number
Par Value GBP 1.00 GBP 0.01 EUR 0.01 EUR 0.06
Shareholders'
Capltal in EUR EUR 293,060 EUR 0.01 EUR 481,467 EUR 74,656
Sharehalder's Nl Nil EUR 4,058,860 Nil
Premium
'Er::?::h‘“ eholder’s EUR 293,060 EUR 0.01 EUR 4,540,327 EUR 74,656
:3;8 Net Assets in EUR 1,289,057 Nil EUR 4,540,327 Nl
2018 P&L in EUR EUR 151,922 NIl Nil Nil

32 Related Party Transactions

The Group had total borrowings from U.S. Bancorp as at 31 December 2018 of nil (2017: nil). The Group had no short
term borrowings from U.S. Bancorp during 2018 (2017: nif}. The Group also enters into foreign exchange transactions
with U.5. Bancorp, details of which can be found in Note 19,

The Group had total deposits with U.5. Bancorp as at 31 Decerber 2018 of EUR 116,471 thousand (2017; EUR 306,959
thousand), EUR 104,803 thousand (2017: EUR 288,896 thousand) were Fixed Term Deposits and EUR 11,668 thousand
{2017: EUR 18,063 thousand) were Cash Deposits. The interest income earned on all non EUR deposits totalled EUR
2,935 thousand during 2018 {2017: EUR 3,197 thousand). There was no bank processing fees from affiliated companies
on EUR deposits during 2018 (2017: EUR 6,845 thousand).

The Group also entered into day-to-day transactions with U.S. Bancorp and its subsidiaries, mainly comprising the
recharging of various costs incurred and transfer pricing. The net costs associated with services provided by or to
affiliated companies totalled EUR 1,369 thousand during 2018 (2017: EUR (3,288) thousand).

The Group has a net receivable from affiliate companies of EUR 5,489 thousand as at 31 December 2018 {2017; EUR
1,241 thousand payable). The entities which owed amounts to the Group as at 31 December 2018 are U,S. Bancorp,
U.S. Bank National Association, Elavon Inc., U.S. Bancorp Fund Services LLC, U.S. Bancorp Fund Services Limited,
Quintitlion Limited and Quintillion Holdings Company Limited.

During 2017 the Group sold its 51% shareholding in Santander Elavon Merchant Services, a Joint Venture with Banco
Santander which began in April 2013. During 2018, the Group continued to provide merchant processing and
administrative services to the Joint Venture, As at31 December 2018, the Group has a receivable of EUR 299 thousand
relating to these services (2017; EUR 1,043 thousand). Further information is available in Note 11.

As at 31 December 2018 the Group has received a guarantee from U.S, Bank for airline exposures. No liability is expected
to arise.
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32 Related Party Transactions (continued)

The Group grants stock-based awards, including restricted stock, restricted stock units and options to purchase common
stock of U.S. Bancorp. Stock option grants are for a fixed number of shares to employees and Directors with an exercise
price equal to the fair value of the shares at the date of grant. Restricted stack and restricted stock unlt grants are
awarded at no cost to the recipient. Stock-based compensation for awards is recognized In the Group's results on a
straight-line basis over the vesting period. The cost of these awards for 2018 totalled EUR 588 thousand {2017: EUR 434

thousand}.

| Related Party Transactlons - Key Management Compensation i

In thousands of Furo 2018 2017

Short-term benefits:

Salaries 3,294 3,365

Short-term bonuses 896 1,259

Directors’ fees 140 140

Car allowances 118 123

Club subscriptions 3 5

Dividends 14 22

Other 60 32

Remuneration in respect of Termination Payments 145 -

Long-term benefits

Long-term bonuses 256 196

Share-based payment benefits

Restricted stock units 1,128 546

Past-employment benefits:

Contributions to deflned contribution plans 174 315
| Total 6,228 6,003 |

The staff Included in Key Management are |dentified Staff fn accordance with EBA guidance.

33 Capital Management

The Group malntains an actively managed capital base to cover risks inherent in the business. The adeguacy of the
Group’s capltal Is monitored using, among other measures, the rules and ratios established by the Basel Committee in
Banking Supervision and implemented into law by the Eurcpean Commission and by the Central Bank of Ireland, In

supervising the Group.

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to ensure that the Group maintains healthy capital ratios
in order to support its business and that the Group complies with externally imposed capital requirements. The Group
manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to It in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of its activities.

34 Dividend Policy
No dividend was issued for the year (2017 nil).

35 Subsequent Events
There are no subsegquent events after the reporting date that require disclosure in the financial statements.

36 Approval of Financial Statements
The Group’s Consolidated Financial Statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on the 21st

March 2019.




Notes to the Company Financial Statements

Where applicable, the Basis of Preparation, Accounting Palicies and subsequent Notes to the Company Financial
Statements are the same as the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as set out on pages 24 to 66, Any
Notes to the Company Financial Statements that differ to the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements are set
out below. The Company's investments in its subsidiaries are stated at cost less any impalrment.

A Net Fee and Commission Income

| Net Fee and Commission Income - |

In thousands of Euro 2018 2017
Merchant processing services 245,346 247,057
Corporate payment products revenue 4,899 4,551
Corporate trust revenue 36,666 36,041

] Net fee and commission income 286,911 287,649 |

B Other Operating Income

| Other Operating Income - E
In thousands of Furo 2018 2017
Dividend income on avallable for sale financial assets 10 906
Realised gain on sale of financial assets* - 4,157
Services provided to affiliate companies 19,882 14,670
Other operating Income - Other 38 35
Retovery of finance lease losses - 10

| Other operating Income 19,930 19,778 |

*The realised gain on sale of financial assets relates to the sale of Visa Shares.

C Other Operating Expense

In 2013, the Group amended its long term incentive plan. This amendment enabled U.S. Bancorp to grant certain
employees shares in U.S. Bancorp as a retention incentive. As at 31 December, the charge for these awards In 2018
was EUR 588 thousand (2017: EUR 434 thousand). As at 31 December 2018, EUR 62 thousand was payable (2017:
EUR 36 thousand). The charge for all other long term incentive awards In 2018 was EUR 2,750 thousand {2017: EUR

2,408 thousand).

An element of salaries and wages has been capitalised during the year in relation to the development of software. The
Group has not capitalised social insurance and other retirement benefits during the year.
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¢ Other Operating Expense {continued)

[ Other Operating Expenses ;
in thousands of Etro Note 2018 2017
Staff Costs
Wages and salaries 121,630 106,181
Soclal security costs 13,203 12,140
Pension costs - defined contribution plans 249 ) 4,843 4,705
Penslon costs - defined benefit plans 24 411 448
Staff costs - other 11,977 10,250
Auditar's Remuneration
Statutory audit 632 660
Other assurance services 5 s
Other operating expenses
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 18 15,718 14,304
Amartisation of intangible assets 17 3,606 4,899
Goodwill impairment 16 - 314
Losses from dispasals of fixed assets 411 253
Marketing and business development 10,230 9,095
Occupancy and equipment 11,557 12,109
Other operating expenses - Other 12,880 9,286
Bank processing fees* 21,979 28,685
Postage, printing and supplies 2,266 2,237
Professional services 14,720 12,766
Technology and communications 7,946 9,149
Services provided by affiliate companies 17,193 8,289
Total operating expenses 271,213 245,775
Foreign exchange loss 3,096 3,745

! Tatal other operating expense 274,309 249,520 ;

*Bank Processing fees includes negative interest expense

Directors’ emoluments are analysed as foliows:

In thousands of Euro 2018 2017
Remuneration in respect of services as Director 160 140
Remuneration in connection with management 1,012 944
Remuneration to Directors in respect of other termination payments - 260
Remuneratlon in respect of other assets received or receivable from long term incentive plans - 266
Pension costs — defined contribution plans {other than in respect of services as Director)* 22 179
Total Directors’ emoluments 1,154 1,789

*Penslons costs relate to payments for two Directors.
No payments have been paid to past Directors during the current or prior year.
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D Income Taxes
| Income Taxes |
In thousands of Euro Rate 2018 2017
Current Tax
Irish corporation tox
Current year 1,173 4,742
AdJustment in respect of prior year 328 {42)
Foreign tax
Current year 7,056 6,817
Prior year tax expense (789) 323
Deferred tax income 117 216
Income tax expense for the year 7,885 12,056
A reconclliation of tax on profit on ordinary activities at the standard Irish carporation tax rate to the Group's
actual tax charge is as follows:
Profit before tax 43,446 42,523
Theoretical tax charge at statutory rate 12.5% 5431 5316
Tax effect of items which are not deductible or assessable for taxation purposes:
{Reversal)/Addition of prior year tax (461) 281
Non-deductible expenses 194 2,503
Total temporary differences not accounted for in deferred tax 348 {283)
Overseas profits taxed at a higher rate 2,410 2,927
Losses recognised - 83
Current year profits taxed at a higher rate - 852
Other adjustments (37) (23)
! Income tax expense for the year_ 7,885 12,056 |
Deferred tax as included on the Company Statement of Financial Position:
| Deferred Taxes
In thousands of Euro 2018 2017
Deferred Tax Liability
Tax effect of taxable temporary differences
Other intangibles: amortisation (1,405) {1,701)
Asset timing differences {(1,882) (1,644)
Foreign exchange differences 2 13
LRecdgnlsed deferred tax liability {3,285) {3,332) |
In thousands of Euro 2018 2017
Deferred Tax Asset
Tax effect of taxable temporary differences
Asset timing differences 2,467 3,036
Re-measurement of Defined Benefit Plan 837 730
Exchange movements 89 {352)
| Recognised deferred tax asset ’ " 3,393 3,414 |
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b Income Taxes (continued)
Underlying profit before tax for the year ended 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 included a gain on sale of
shares in Visa Europe, as discussed in Note S to the Consolidated Financial Statements. For the purposes of taxation
this gain was considered trading income in nature subject to Irish corporate tax at the rate of 12,.5%. The group
recognises that the irish tax authorities may challenge this tax treatment at some future point and hence an uncertain
tax provision was included within the 2017 and 2016 current income tax expense in respect of this uncertain
position. This represents the difference between the taxation of the gain as a trading recelpt versus a capital
receipt. At 31 December 2018 the pravision held was EUR 40,070 thousand (2017: EUR 40,070 thousand).

E Subsidiary Undertakings

UB Nees

EFS Depoltrv -

subsidiary name u.s ank Trutees EuroConex
dd Limited (U.K.} Umited | Technologles Limited Nominees Limited
Registered office Street, London Street, London yw Y
EC2N 2BQ EC2N 2BQ Park, Loughlinstown, and Tech. Park,
D18 W319 | loughlinstown, Dublin
Principal activity Carporate Trust Corporate Trust Currently no activi Currently no activi
P Services Services ¥ ty ynoa ty
Share Capital 250,000 100 481,467 12,000,000
Nominal value GBP 1 GBP 1 EUR 1 EUR1
Type of shares Ordinary Shares |  Ordinary Shares Ordinary Shares Ordinary Shares
Shareholder 250,000 100 48,146,734 1,244,269
number
Par Value GBP 1.00 GBP 0.01 EUR 0.01 EUR 0.06
shareholders’
Capltal in EUR EUR 293,060 EUR 0.01 ELUR 481,467 EUR 74,656
]
Shareholder’s Nil Nil EUR 4,058,860 Nil
Premium
:::?::ha’eh"'de"s EUR 293,060 EUR 0.01 EUR 4,540,327 EUR 74,656
iﬁf Net Assets in EUR 1,289,057 Nil EUR 4,540,327 il
2018 P&L in EUR EUR 151,922 Nit Nil Nil
F Investment Services Recelvables
| Investment Services Recelvables |
in thousands of Euro 2018 2017
GCTS fee receivables 9,823 10,832
Receivahbles from ciearing houses - Clearstream 3 -
[ As at 31 December 9,836 10,832_;

Due to the nature of the GCTS business and the structure of the deals in place, it Is ensured that the Company will
always be paid before a loan fully redeems. Therefore, none are deemed to be past due or impaired.
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G Other Assets

The following Other Assets are deemed to be current assets with the exception of the Visa Europe deferred

consideration.

| Other Assets |
In thousands of Euro 2018 2017
Commercial loans - receivable 22,035 19,697
Prepayments, deferred expenses and other receivables 49,687 9,918
Visa Europe deferred consideration receivable 17,171 16,511
Tax dehbtors 32 i64
QOther assets - other 408 200
Receivables from affiliate companies 8,101 371
Farward exchange contracts 272 376
Interest receivable 385 574

[ As at 31 December 98,091 47,811 |

Derlvatives entered into by the Company are generally traded in an over-the-counter market with professional
market counterparties an standardised contractual terms and conditions. The contracts are short-term deposits and
the latest date of maturity for the above contracts is 22 January 2019,

Forward contracts frequently involve a high degree of leverage, and a relatively small movement in a currency
exchange rate may give rise to a significant loss. Over-the-counter derivatives may expose the Company to the risks
associated with the absence of an exchange market on which to close out on an open position. The use of
standardised contractual terms and conditions by the Company mitigates the risk. The Company has credit exposure

to the counterparties of forward contracts.

The Company settles its forward contracts on a net basis and therefore mitigates its liquidity risk. The Company’s
exposure under derivative contracts is closely menitored as part of the overall management of the Company’s

market risk.

The Visa Europe deferred consideration receivable accrues interest at 4% and the full settlement is expected to be

recelved in June 2019,

| Forward Exchange Contracts

In thousands of Euro

Notional Amount

Fair Value Assets

Fair Value Uabilitles

PLN 107,117 175 -
SEK 17,479 - (74)
UsD - - -
AUD 1,260 27 -
Other 26,835 70 {79)
| As at end of 31 December 2018 152,691 272 (153) ;

In thousands of Euro

Notional Amount

Fair Value Assets

Fair Value Liabillties

PLN 135,469 - {874)
NOX - - -
SEK 18,051 - -
usD 22,366 289 -
AUD 5,166 - {43)
Other 25,820 87 (316)

| As at end of 31 December 2017 206,872 376 . {1,233) |
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H Other Liabilities
The following Other Liabilities are deemed to be current ilabilities with the exception of the Pension liability.

| Other Liabilities

In thousands of Euro Note 2018 2017
Accruals and sundry creditors* 46,081 45,785
Pension liability 24 8911 7,664
VAT and other tax creditors 6,968 9,251
Corporate payables 3,646 1,619
Deferred revenue 3,917 3,355
Forward exchange contracts 19 153 1,233
Payable to affiliate companies 7,169 5,903
Commercial loans - payable 1,435 1,563
Other liabilities — other 498 541
! As at 31 December 78,778 76,914 ;

*As at 31 December 2018, the liability for sundry creditors was EUR 1,430 thousand (2017: EUR 1,787 thousand).

| Approval of Financial Statements
The Company Financial Statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 21st March 2019.
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Appendix 1

Regulatory Capital (Unaudited)
The following disclosures in relation to regulatory capital are prepared by management and do not form part of the
statutory Consolidated Financial Statements prepared under the applicable accounting framework (IFRS as adopted

by the EU).

The Group's regulatory capital comprises fully of Common Equity Tier 1 {CET1) capital. CET1 mainly consists of share
capital, capital contribution, retained earnings and the foreign currency translation reserve. The majority of
deductions to capital are driven by goodwill, other intangible assets and the [FRS9 ECL provision.

The fall in risk weighted assets during 2018 is principally driven by the Central Bank of Ireland approving the use of
reduced credit conversion factors applied against the Group’s contingent liabilities.

IE\Pital Management - Regulatory Capital i
In thousands of Euro Actual 2018 | Actual 2017

Common equity Tler 1 capital 919,570 885,138
Tier 2 capital - -
| Total Capital 919,570 889,138 |
Risk Weighted Assets 1,797,879 3,654,966
CET 1 Capital Ratio 51.1% 24.3%
| Total Capltal Ratio , 51,1% 24.3% |

Asintroduced by CRD IV the leverage ratio Is designed to prevent an excessive build-up of leverage on an institutions
balance sheet. The ratio is defined as Tier 1 capital divided by total leverage exposures, which include on-balance
sheet Iterns, off-halance sheet items and derivatives.

The implications of the leverage ratio are being closely monitored by the Group prior to 'ts move to a binding
requirement. The Group expects to remain above the Basel Committee indicated minimum leverage ratio of 3%.

| Leverage Ratio _|
Fully Loaded | Fully Loaded
2018 2017
Leverage Ratio 11.2% 6.2%
| Total Leverage Ratlo ] 11.2% 6.2% |
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in accordance with

lati :
it QS AAQ1 W
Regulaions 2005 Statement of details of parent law and other Companies House
information for an overseas company
'i C\Jl\“]’;f“h‘;"-'-‘“ v‘ ﬁ:\JUSE -
FEE FruD :
BELFAST |
& What this form is for What this form is NOT for
You may use this form to You cannot use this form to register
accompany your accounts an alteration of manner of complianc
disclosed under parent law. with accounting requirements.
Part 1 Corporate company name * Filling in this form

Corporate name of
overseas company @

UK establishment
number

| ELAVON FINANCIAL SERVICES DAC

(s [r folofefaf7 o]

Please complete in typescript or in
hold black capitals.

All fields are mandatory unless
specified or indicated by *

@ This is the name of the company in
its home state.

Part 2

Statement of details of parent law and other

information for an overseas company

~

Legislation

Please give the legisiation under which the accounts have been prepared and,
if applicable, the legislation under which the accounts have been audited.

@This means the relevant rules or
legislation which regulates the
preparation and, if applicable, the

Legislation @ |lnternational Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by EU ang | a”ld‘t of accounts.
w Accounting principles
Accounts Have the accounts been prepared in accordance with a set of generally accepted | @ Please insert the name of the

accounting principles?
Please tick the appropriate box.
[0 No. Go to Section A3,

Yes. Please enter the name of the organisation or other
body which issued those principles below, and then go to Section A3,

Name of organisation l

appropriate accounting organisation
or body.

or body © IFRS
E Accounts
Accounts Have the accounts been audited? Please tick the appropriate box.

[J No. Go to Section AS.
Yes. Go to Section Ad.

CHFPOOO
05/12 Version 5.0
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Statement of details of parent law and other information for an overseas company

Audited accounts
Audited accaunts Have the accounts been audited in accordance with a set of generally accepted @ Please Insert the name af the
auditing standards? appropriate accounting
. erganisation or body.
Please tick the appropriate box.
[T] No.Go toPart 3 'Slgnature”.
Yes, Please enter the name of the organisation ar other body which issued
those standards below, and then go to Part 3 *Signature’,
L\Iratl;rcl;;fgrganisation International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland)
m Unaudited accounts
Unaudited accounts | Is the company.required to have its accounts audited?
- | Please tick the appropriate box.
J Ne.
Yes,
Part 3 Signature
| am signing this form on behalf of the overseas company.
Signature ' 5‘!“'"" - X
This form may be  signed by:
DT, Secretary, Permramrent represenaive—
CHFP0OO

05112 Version 5.0
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Statement of details of parent law and other information for an overseas company

E Presenter information

n Important information

You do not have to give any contact information, but if
you do it will help Companies House if there is a query
on the form. The contact information you give will be
visible to searchers of the public record.

{"’"‘“‘“’“" DONNA PARKER
Companymame TUGHANS

l Address

MARLBOROUGH HOUSE
|30 VICTORIA STREET

|

| ™" BELFAST

County/Region

N O N
| "™ NORTHERN IRELAND
|™ 433 NR BELFAST 1

TR 02890 553300

Checklist

We may return forms completed incorrectly or
with information missing.

Please make sure you have remembered the

following:

0 The company name and, if appropriate, the
registerad number, match the information held on
the public Register.

O You have completed all sections of the form,
if appropriate.

O You have signed the form.

Please note that all this information will appear
on the public record.

@ Where to send

You may return this farm te any Companies
House address:

England and Wales:

The Registrar of Companies, Companies House,
Crown Way, Cardiff, Wales, CF14 3UZ.

DX 33050 Cardiff.

Scotland:

The Registrar of Companies, Companies House,
Fourth floor, Edinburgh Quay 2,

139 Fountainkridge, Edinburgh, Scotland, EH3 9FF.
DX ED235 Edinburgh 1

or LP - 4 Edinburgh 2 {Legal Post).

Northern Ireland:

The Registrar of Companies, Companies House,
Second Floor, The Linenhall, 32-38 Linenhall Street,
Belfast, Northern Ireland, BT2 8BG.

DX 481 N.R. Belfast 1.

n Further information

Far further information, please see the guidance notes
on the website at www.companieshouse.gov.uk
or email enquiries@companieshouse.gov.uk

This form is available in an
alternative format. Please visit the
forms page on the website at
www.companieshouse.gov.uk

This has been provided free of charge by Companies House.

CHFPOGO
05/12 Version 5.0




